
 

City of Grand Island

Tuesday, April 11, 2017
Council Session Packet

City Council: 
Linna Dee Donaldson
Michelle Fitzke
Chuck Haase 
Julie Hehnke
Jeremy Jones
Vaughn Minton
Mitchell Nickerson
Mike Paulick 
Roger Steele
Mark Stelk

Mayor:
Jeremy L. Jensen

City Administrator:
Marlan Ferguson

City Clerk:
RaNae Edwards

7:00 PM
Council Chambers - City Hall

100 East 1st Street

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 1 / 201



City of Grand Island Tuesday, April 11, 2017

 

Call to Order
This is an open meeting of the Grand Island City Council. The City of Grand Island abides by the Open 
Meetings Act in conducting business. A copy of the Open Meetings Act is displayed in the back of this room 
as required by state law.

The City Council may vote to go into Closed Session on any agenda item as allowed by state law.

Invocation - Youth Pastor Adam Brock, Stolley Park Church of Christ, 2822 
West Stolley Park Road

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

A - SUBMITTAL OF REQUESTS FOR FUTURE ITEMS
Individuals who have appropriate items for City Council consideration should complete the Request for 
Future Agenda Items form located at the Information Booth. If the issue can be handled administratively 
without Council action, notification will be provided. If the item is scheduled for a meeting or study 
session, notification of the date will be given. 

B - RESERVE TIME TO SPEAK ON AGENDA ITEMS
This is an opportunity for individuals wishing to provide input on any of tonight's agenda items to reserve 
time to speak. Please come forward, state your name and address, and the Agenda topic on which you will 
be speaking.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 2 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item C-1

Proclamation “Child Abuse Prevention Month” April 2017 
Because all children deserve love, comfortable homes, and tender care from parents and adults who 
make them feel safe, happy and loved, and because the effects of child abuse are felt by whole 
communities and need to be addressed by the entire community, the Mayor has proclaimed the month of 
April, 2017 as "Child Abuse Prevention Month". See attached PROCLAMATION.

Staff Contact: Mayor Jeremy Jensen

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 3 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 4 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item E-1

Public Hearing on Request from Prairie Pride Brewing Company, 
LLC dba Prairie Pride Brewing Company, 115 E. South Front 
Street for a Class “C” Liquor License
Council action will take place under Consent Agenda item G-5.

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 5 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 

From: RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Public Hearing on Request from Prairie Pride Brewing 
Company, LLC dba Prairie Pride Brewing Co., 115 E. 
South Front Street for a Class “C” Liquor License

Presenter(s): RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 

Background

Section 4-2 of the Grand Island City Code declares the intent of the City Council 
regarding liquor licenses and the sale of alcohol.

Declared Legislative Intent
It is hereby declared to be the intent and purpose of the city council in adopting 
and administering the provisions of this chapter:

(A) To express the community sentiment that the control of availability of alcoholic 
liquor to the public in general and to minors in particular promotes the public 
health, safety, and welfare;

(B) To encourage temperance in the consumption of alcoholic liquor by sound and 
careful control and regulation of the sale and distribution thereof; and

(C) To ensure that the number of retail outlets and the manner in which they are 
operated is such that they can be adequately policed by local law enforcement 
agencies so that the abuse of alcohol and the occurrence of alcohol-related crimes 
and offenses is kept to a minimum.

Discussion

Prairie Pride Brewing Company, LLC dba Prairie Pride Brewing Company, 115 E. South 
Front Street has submitted an application for a Class “C” Liquor License. A Class “C” 
Liquor License allows for the sale of alcohol on and off sale inside the corporate limits of 
the city.

Prairie Pride Brewing Company currently holds a Class “LK” Liquor License at this 
location which allows for the brewing of beer along with a catering designation. The 
Class “C” liquor license will enable them to sell other types of beer, wine, and distilled 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 6 / 201



spirits at this location. This business will then have both the Class “LK” and “C” liquor 
licenses if approved which is allowed by the Liquor Control Commission.

City Council action is required and forwarded to the Nebraska Liquor Control 
Commission for issuance of all licenses. This application has been reviewed by the Clerk, 
Building, Fire, Health, and Police Departments. See attached Police Department report.

Also submitted was a request for Liquor Manager Designation for Alexander Briner, 
1314 14th Street, Aurora, Nebraska. Mr. Briner has completed a state approved alcohol 
server/seller training program. Staff recommends approval contingent upon final 
inspections.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may:

1. Approve the application.
2. Forward to the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission with no 

recommendation.
3. Forward to the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission with recommendations.
4. Deny the application.

Recommendation

Based on the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission’s criteria for the approval of Liquor 
Licenses, City Administration recommends that the Council approve this application.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the application for Prairie Pride Brewing Company, LLC dba Prairie 
Pride Brewing Company, 115 E. South Front Street for a Class “C” Liquor License 
contingent upon final inspections and Liquor Manager Designation for Alexander Briner, 
1314 14th Street, Aurora, Nebraska.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 7 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 8 / 201



LO
CU

ST
 ST

 S

CLARK
ST S

PIN
E

ST
 S

8TH ST W

WALNUT ST N

7TH ST E

1ST ST E

LO
CU

ST
ST

 S

OAK ST N

4TH ST W

9TH ST W

SYCAMORE ST N

EDDY ST S
LOCUST ST N

ELM ST S

7TH ST W

CHARLES
ST W

ASHTON
AVE W

CLARK
ST N

2ND
ST W

ELM ST N

5TH ST W
WHEELER

AVE S

CEDAR ST N

5TH ST E

VINE ST N

CHARLES ST W

WHEELER AVE N

KIMBALL AVE N

KOENIG
ST W

7TH ST E

NORTH FRONT ST W

1ST ST W

6TH ST E

9TH ST E

SOUTH FRONT ST W
2ND ST E

DIVISION ST W

3RD ST E

10TH ST W

2ND ST W

4TH ST E5TH ST E

6TH ST W

KOENIG ST W

KIMBALL AVE N

3RD ST W

8TH ST E

LOCUST ST N
PLUMST N

WALNUT ST S

WHEELER AVE N

WALNUT
ST S

ELM ST N

CEDAR ST N

VINE ST N

CLEBURN ST N

PINE ST N

CLEBURN
ST S

EDDY ST N CEDAR ST S

ST PAUL RD

SY
CA

MO
RE

 ST
 S

DIVISION ST E

CHARLES ST E

COURT ST E

PLUM ST N

ASHTON AVE E

KOENIG ST E

OA
K 

ST
 S

PIN
E 

ST
 S

SOUTH FRONT ST E

KI
MB

AL
L A

VE
 S

µ

Liquor Application
Prairie Pride Brewing Co.

115 E South Front St.
Class "C" License

Legend
St. Centerline
Liquor License Locations
115 E South Front St 1500' Radius

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 9 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item E-2

Public Hearing on Acquisition of Utility Easement - 750 Allen 
Drive - Allen Phase III LLC
Council action will take place under Consent Agenda item G-7.

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger, Stacy Nonhof

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 10 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 
From: Tim Luchsinger, Utilities Director

Stacy Nonhof, Assistant City Attorney

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Acquisition of Utility Easement – 750 Allen Drive – 
Allen Phase III LLC

Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director

Background 

Nebraska State Law requires that acquisition of property must be approved by City 
Council. The Utilities Department needs to acquire utility easement relative to the 
property of Allen Phase III LLC, located through a part of Lot Eleven (11) Meadowlark 
West Third Subdivision (750 Allen Drive), in the City of Grand Island, Hall County, 
Nebraska, in order to have access to install, upgrade, maintain, and repair power 
appurtenances, including lines and transformers.

Discussion

A new medical facility is currently under construction at 750 Allen Drive. The proposed 
easement provides the location for the installation, operation and maintenance of the high 
voltage power lines and a transformer to serve the new development.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may:

1. Make a motion to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4.       Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution for the 
acquisition of the easement for one dollar ($1.00).

Sample Motion

Move to approve acquisition of the Utility Easement.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 11 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 12 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item E-3

Public Hearing on Acquisition of Utility Easement - 4171 Nevada 
Avenue - Blackburn
Council action will take place under Consent Agenda item G-8.

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger, Stacy Nonhof

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 13 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 
From: Tim Luchsinger, Utilities Director

Stacy Nonhof, Assistant City Attorney

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Acquisition of Utility Easement – 4171 Nevada Avenue - 
Blackburn

Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director

Background 

Nebraska State Law requires that acquisition of property must be approved by City 
Council. The Utilities Department needs to acquire utility easement relative to the 
property of Corey and Amanda Blackburn, located through a part of Lot Four (4) Ross 
Heights 2nd Subdivision (4171 Nevada Avenue), in the City of Grand Island, Hall 
County, Nebraska, in order to have access to install, upgrade, maintain, and repair power 
appurtenances, including lines and transformers.

Discussion

The requested easement is across a residential lot on the south side of Nevada Avenue 
and east of Independence Avenue. The property owner is in the process of remodeling 
their home and upgrading their electric service. The proposed easement provides the 
location for the installation, operation and maintenance of the new underground power 
lines.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may:

1. Make a motion to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4.       Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution for the 
acquisition of the easement for one dollar ($1.00).

Sample Motion

Move to approve acquisition of the Utility Easement.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 14 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 15 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item E-4

Public Hearing on Acquisition of Utility Easement - 4179 Nevada 
Avenue - Greamy, LLC
Council action will take place under Consent Agenda item G-9.

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger, Stacy Nonhof

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 16 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 
From: Tim Luchsinger, Utilities Director

Stacy Nonhof, Assistant City Attorney

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Acquisition of Utility Easement – 4179 Nevada Avenue 
– Greamy, LLC

Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director

Background 

Nebraska State Law requires that acquisition of property must be approved by City 
Council. The Utilities Department needs to acquire utility easement relative to the 
property of Greamy, LLC, located through a part of Lot Three (3) Ross Heights 2nd 
Subdivision (4179 Nevada Avenue), in the City of Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska, 
in order to have access to install, upgrade, maintain, and repair power appurtenances, 
including lines and transformers.

Discussion

The requested easement is across a residential lot on the south side of Nevada Avenue 
and east of Independence Avenue. The original overhead electrical lines in the area were 
installed 40 years ago.  The adjacent property owner is in the process of remodeling and 
upgrading their electric service. The proposed easement provides the location for the 
installation, operation and maintenance of new underground power lines.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may:

1. Make a motion to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4.       Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution for the 
acquisition of the easement for one dollar ($1.00).

Sample Motion

Move to approve acquisition of the Utility Easement.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 17 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 18 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item E-5

Public Hearing on Acquisition of Utility Easement - 4480 Gold 
Core Drive - Inland Truck Parts Company
Council action will take place under Consent Agenda item G-10.

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger, Stacy Nonhof

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 19 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 
From: Tim Luchsinger, Utilities Director

Stacy Nonhof, Assistant City Attorney

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Acquisition of Utility Easement – 4480 Gold Core Drive 
– Inland Truck Parts Company

Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director

Background 

Nebraska State Law requires that acquisition of property must be approved by City 
Council. The Utilities Department needs to acquire utility easement relative to the 
property of Inland Truck Parts Company, located through a part of Lot Two (2) Platte 
Valley Industrial Park Tenth Subdivision (4480 Gold Core Drive), in the City of Grand 
Island, Hall County, Nebraska, in order to have access to install, upgrade, maintain, and 
repair power appurtenances, including lines and transformers.

Discussion

A new commercial/retail facility is planned to be constructed at 4480 Gold Core Drive. 
The proposed easement provides the location for the installation, operation and 
maintenance of the high voltage underground power lines and pad-mount transformer to 
serve the new development.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may:

1. Make a motion to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4.       Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution for the 
acquisition of the easement for one dollar ($1.00).

Sample Motion

Move to approve acquisition of the Utility Easement.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 20 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 21 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item F-1

#9629 - Consideration of Creation of Sanitary Sewer District No. 
540T; West US Highway 30 & Engleman Road / West Park Plaza 
Sanitary Sewer Extension

Staff Contact: John Collins, P.E. - Public Works Director

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 22 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 
From: Marvin Strong PE, Wastewater Treatment Plant Engineer

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Consideration of Creation of Sanitary Sewer District No. 
540T; West US Highway 30 and Engleman Road / West 
Park Plaza Sanitary Sewer Extension

Presenter(s): John Collins, Public Works Director

Background

Council action is needed to create a sanitary sewer district. Wastewater staff is being 
proactive with this sanitary sewer district by placing infrastructure prior to the new west 
US Highway 30 realignment project, which is scheduled for construction in 2020. After 
the highway realignment project is complete it will be very costly to perform trenchless 
crossings to install this infrastructure.

Discussion

This tap district will have the ability to serve areas that are yet to be developed, which is 
anticipated to change with the west US Highway 30 realignment project. Sewer will 
become available to approximately 250 properties that currently do not have access; the 
majority of these properties are within the West Park Plaza Mobile Home Park.

If the district is created the sanitary sewer costs would be assessed to the properties 
through a sanitary sewer tap district.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Move to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 23 / 201



Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve the creation of Sanitary Sewer 
District No. 540T.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the Ordinance.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 24 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

This Space Reserved for Register of Deeds

ORDINANCE NO. 9629

An ordinance creating Sanitary Sewer District No. 540T of the City of Grand 

Island, Nebraska; defining the boundaries thereof; providing for the laying of sanitary sewer 

mains in said district; providing for plans and specifications and securing bids; providing for the 

connection fee for connecting to such sanitary sewer; providing for certification to the Register 

of Deeds of the connection fee; and providing for publication and the effective date of this 

ordinance.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA:

SECTION 1.  Sanitary Sewer District No. 540T is hereby created for the 

construction of:

A fifteen (15.0) inch gravity Sanitary Sewer Main and appurtenances thereto within 

Section Twenty Seven (27), Township Eleven (11) North, Range Ten (10) and Section 

Twenty Six (26), Township Eleven (11) North, Range Ten (10), all in the City of Grand 

Island, Hall County, Nebraska.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 25 / 201



ORDINANCE NO. 9629 (Cont.)

- 2 -

SECTION 2.  The boundaries of such sanitary sewer district shall be as follows:

A SANITARY SEWER TAP DISTRICT COMPRISING PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION TWENTY SEVEN (27), TOWNSHIP ELEVEN (11) NORTH, 
RANGE TEN (10); PART OF THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 
TWENTY SEVEN (27), TOWNSHIP ELEVEN (11) NORTH, RANGE TEN (10); PART OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION TWENTY SIX (26), 
TOWNSHIP ELEVEN (11) NORTH, RANGE TEN (10); PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF 
SECTION TWENTY SIX (26), TOWNSHIP ELEVEN (11) NORTH, RANGE TEN (10);  PART OF THE 
WEST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION TWENTY SIX (26), TOWNSHIP ELEVEN 
(11) NORTH, RANGE TEN (10), ALL WEST OF THE 6TH P.M., HALL COUNTY, NEBRASKA AND 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW1/4) OF 
SECTION TWENTY SIX (26), SAID POINT BEING 2,338.6 FEET EAST OF THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF SECTION TWENTY SIX (26); SAID POINT BEING THE ACTUAL POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING EASTERLY TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW1/4), A DISTANCE OF 300 FEET, SAID POINT BEING THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW1/4) OF SECTION TWENTY SIX (26); 
THENCE CONTINUING EASTERLY ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER 
(NE1/4),  A DISTANCE OF 329.5 FEET; THENCE RUNNING SOUTHERLY ON THE EAST LINE OF 
PERSON'S SUBDIVISION AND THE PROLONGATION THEREOF, TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER 
OF LOT FORTY FIVE (45) PERSON'S SUBDIVISION, A DISTANCE OF 1,352.2 FEET; THENCE 
RUNNING EASTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER, OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER (SW1/4, NE1/4) OF SECTION TWENTY SIX (26),  A DISTANCE OF 256.3 
FEET, TO THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD 
R.O.W.; THENCE RUNNING SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE , A DISTANCE 
OF 4,736.6 FEET; THENCE RUNNING NORTHWESTERLY AND PERPENDICULAR TO SAID 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE,  A DISTANCE OF 603.6 FEET; THENCE NORTHERLY AND PARALLEL TO 
THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER,  OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (NW1/4, SE1/4) 
OF SECTION TWENTY SEVEN (27),  A DISTANCE OF 69.8 FEET; THENCE RUNNING WESTERLY,  
A DISTANCE OF 1,510.9 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER 
(SE1/4), SAID POINT BEING 1,687.2 FEET NORTH OF SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE UNION 
PACIFIC RAILROAD R.O.W .; THENCE RUNNING NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF SAID 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE1/4), A DISTANCE OF 531.0 FEET, TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE1/4) OF SECTION TWENTY SEVEN (27); THENCE RUNNING 
EASTERLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE1/4),  A DISTANCE OF 
1,314.1 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHEAST CORNER, OF THE SOUTH WEST QUARTER, OF 
THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (SW1/4, NE1/4) OF SECTION TWENTY SEVEN (27); THENCE 
RUNNING NORTHERLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4), OF 
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW1/4) OF SECTION TWENTY SEVEN (27),  A DISTANCE OF 1,122.2 
FEET; THENCE RUNNING EASTERLY AND PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 
NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE1/4),  A DISTANCE OF 1,323.9 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE 
OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE1/4); THENCE RUNNING SOUTHERLY ALONG THE EAST 
LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE1/4), A DISTANCE OF 613.0 FEET,  TO A POINT ON 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 26 / 201



ORDINANCE NO. 9629 (Cont.)

- 3 -

THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE1/4), SAID POINT BEING 508.7 FEET NORTH 
OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER, OF THE SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE1/4); THENCE 
RUNNING EASTERLY AND PARALLEL TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(NW1/4), OF SECTION TWENTY SIX (26),  A DISTANCE OF 910.8 FEET; THENCE RUNNING 
NORTHEASTERLY AND PARALLEL TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE UNION 
PACIFIC RAILROAD R.O.W., A DISTANCE OF 1,671.4 FEET; THENCE RUNNING NORTHERLY 
AND PARALLEL TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW1/4), A DISTANCE OF 
1,321.8 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  SAID DISTRICT BOUNDARY CONTAINS A 
CALCULATED AREA OF 137.14 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

SECTION 3.  Said improvement shall be made in accordance with plans and 

specifications prepared by the Engineer for the City who shall estimate the costs thereof, and 

submit the same to the City Council, and thereafter, bids for the construction of such sanitary 

sewer shall be taken and contracts entered into in the manner provided by law.

SECTION 4.  The cost of construction of such sanitary sewer main connection 

district shall be reported to the City Council, and the Council, sitting as a Board of Equalization, 

shall determine benefits to abutting property by reason of such improvement pursuant to Section 

16-6,103, R.R.S. 1943. The special benefits shall not be levied as special assessments but shall 

be certified by resolution of the City Council to the Hall County Register of Deeds. A connection 

fee in the amount of the special benefit accruing to each property in the district shall be paid to 

the City of Grand Island prior to such property being connected to the sanitary sewer main in 

such district. No property thus benefited by sanitary sewer main improvements shall be 

connected to the sanitary sewer main until the connection fee is paid.

SECTION 5.  This ordinance shall be in force and take effect from and after its 

passage, approval and publication, without the plat, as provided by law.

SECTION 6.  This ordinance, with the plat, is hereby directed to be filed in the 

office of the Register of Deeds of Hall County, Nebraska.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 27 / 201



ORDINANCE NO. 9629 (Cont.)

- 4 -

SECTION 7.  After passage, approval and publication of this ordinance, notice of 

the creation of said district shall be published in the Grand Island Independent, a legal newspaper 

published and of general circulation in said City, as provided by law.

Enacted:  April 11, 2017

____________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 28 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 29 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-1

Approving Minutes of March 28, 2017 City Council Regular 
Meeting

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 30 / 201



CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA

MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
March 28, 2017

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Grand Island, Nebraska was conducted in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 100 East First 
Street, on March 28, 2017. Notice of the meeting was given in The Grand Island Independent on 
March 22, 2017.

Mayor Jeremy L. Jensen called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. The following City Council 
members were present: Mitch Nickerson, Mark Stelk, Jeremy Jones, Chuck Haase, Linna Dee 
Donaldson, Vaughn Minton, Roger Steele, and Mike Paulick. Councilmembers Michelle Fitzke 
and Julie Hehnke were absent. The following City Officials were present: City Administrator 
Marlan Ferguson, City Clerk RaNae Edwards, Finance Director Renae Griffiths, City Attorney 
Jerry Janulewicz, and Public Works Director John Collins.

Mayor Jensen introduced Community Youth Council member Reid Bednar.

INVOCATION was given by Pastor Mark Oberbeck, Northridge Assembly of God, 3025 
Independence Avenue followed by the PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

BOARD OF EQUALIZATION: Motion by Minton, second by Paulick to adjourn to the Board 
of Equalization. Motion adopted.

#2017-BE-2 - Consideration of Determining Benefits for Fonner Park Business Improvement 
District. Finance Director Renae Griffiths reported that Fonner Park Business Improvement 
District was created by Ordinance No. 9622 on February 14, 2017. The 2017-2018 Budget 
provides for special assessments in the amount of $9.00 per front footage for a total of 
$44,422.88. Staff recommended approval for the City Council to determine the benefits of the 
District.

Motion by Donaldson, second by Minton to approve Resolution #2017-BE-2. Upon roll call 
vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted.

#2017-BE-3 - Consideration of Determining Benefits for South Locust Street Business 
Improvement District. Finance Director Renae Griffiths reported that South Locust Street 
Business Improvement District was created by Ordinance No. 9623 on February 14, 2017. The 
2017-2018 Budget provides for special assessments in the amount of $9.00 per front footage for 
a total of $88,613.44. Staff recommended approval for the City Council to determine the benefits 
of the District.

Motion by Paulick, second by Donaldson to approve Resolution #2017-BE-3. Upon roll call 
vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 31 / 201



Page 2, City Council Regular Meeting, March 28, 2017

RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION: Motion by Minton, second by Jones to return to Regular 
Session. Motion adopted.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

Public Hearing on Request from Kinkaider Brewing Co., LLC dba Kinkaider Brewing Co., 316 
North Pine Street for a Class “CK” Liquor License. City Clerk RaNae Edwards reported that an 
application for a Class “CK” Liquor License had been received from Kinkaider Brewing Co., LLC 
dba Kinkaider Brewing Co., 316 North Pine Street. Ms. Edwards presented the following exhibits 
for the record: application submitted to the Liquor Control Commission and received by the City 
on March 7, 2017; notice to the general public of date, time, and place of hearing published on 
March 18, 2017; notice to the applicant of date, time, and place of hearing mailed on March 9, 
2017; along with Chapter 4 of the City Code. Staff recommended approval contingent upon final 
inspections and completion of a stated approved alcohol server/seller training program. No 
public testimony was heard.

Public Hearing on Request from Harold Rosenkotter and Deborah Spaulding for a Conditional 
Use Permit to Allow for Construction of a House while Living in the Existing Double-wide 
Trailer located at 3204 South Shady Bend Road. Building Department Director Craig Lewis 
reported that Harold Rosenkotter and Deborah Spaulding had submitted an application for a 
Conditional Use Permit for the construction of a new single family dwelling while occupying an 
existing dwelling at 3204 South Shady Bend Road. The proposed construction was anticipated to 
take up to a year to complete. Expiration of the conditional use permit would be April 15, 2019 
or within 90 days after a certificate of occupancy was issued for the new dwelling. Staff 
recommended approval. No public testimony was heard.

Public Hearing on Request from Central Nebraska Transload I, LLC for a Conditional Use 
Permit to Allow for a Chemical/Hazardous Transload (railcar to truck) and Railcar Storage 
located at 1213/1215-1221 E Hwy 30. Building Department Director Craig Lewis reported that 
Central Nebraska Transload 1, LLC had submitted an application for a Conditional Use Permit to 
operate a chemical, industrial, nonhazardous, wholesale facility at 1213/1215-1221 E. Hwy 30. 
Staff recommended approval with the condition that any modification in the chemicals or the 
amounts stored would need to be approved by the Fire Department prior to implementation. The 
operation shall submit and maintain a listing of the products and quantities proposed, including 
documentation identifying the characteristics of the products distributed (MSDS). Dave Taylor 
representing the Economic Development Corporation spoke in support. No further public 
testimony was heard.

Public Hearing on Request from Brian and Cathryn Sack for a Conditional Use Permit to Allow 
for a Used Automobile Sales Business located at 703 & 709 West 3rd Street. Building 
Department Director Craig Lewis reported that Brian and Cathryn Sack had submitted an 
application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow for the operation of an outdoor used 
automobile sales facility located at 703 West 3rd Street. Staff recommended approval. No public 
testimony was heard.

Public Hearing on the Semi-Annual Report by the Grand Island Area Economic Development 
Corporation/Citizens Advisory Review Committee on the Economic Development Program Plan. 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 32 / 201



Page 3, City Council Regular Meeting, March 28, 2017

Economic Development President Dave Taylor presented the semi-annual report, which had 
been voted upon and forwarded to the City Council for its review and acceptance at their March 
2, 2017 meeting. Tim White, 1709 Rio Grande Circle, Vice-Chairman of the Citizens Advisory 
Review Committee, spoke in favor of the semi-annual report. Staff recommended approval. No 
public testimony was heard.

Public Hearing on Acquisition of Utility Easement in Lot 10 & 11 of Summerfield Estates Tenth 
Subdivision – 3815 Meadow Way Trail & 1315 Diamond Road (TPCR Developments, LLC). 
Public Works Director John Collins reported that a utility easement located at 3815 Meadow 
Way Trail and 1315 Diamond Road was needed to accommodate sanitary sewer service to the 
area. The easement would allow for the construction, operation, maintenance, extension, repair, 
replacement, and removal of public utilities within the easement. Staff recommended approval. 
No public testimony was heard.

Public Hearing on Acquisition of Permanent Easement for Lift Station No. 20 Upgrade and 
Force Main Rehabilitation (Titan Machinery, Inc.-3040 Langenheder Street). Public Works 
Director John Collins reported that a permanent easement located at 3040 Langenheder Street 
was needed to accommodate Lift Station No. 20 upgrade and force main rehabilitation. The 
public utility easement would allow for the construction, operation, maintenance, extension, 
repair, replacement, and removal of material within the easement. Staff recommended approval. 
No public testimony was heard.

ORDINANCES:

Councilmember Minton moved “that the statutory rules requiring ordinances to be read by title 
on three different days are suspended and that ordinance numbered:

#9627 - Consideration of Approving Assessments for Fonner Park Business Improvement 
District
#9628 - Consideration of Approving Assessments for South Locust Business 
Improvement District

be considered for passage on the same day upon reading by number only and that the City Clerk 
be permitted to call out the number of this ordinance on second reading and then upon final 
passage and call for a roll call vote on each reading and then upon final passage.” 
Councilmember Nickerson seconded the motion. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion 
adopted.

#9627 - Consideration of Approving Assessments for Fonner Park Business Improvement 
District

This item was related to the aforementioned Board of Equalization hearing.

Motion by Donaldson, second by Paulick to approve Ordinance #9627.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 33 / 201



Page 4, City Council Regular Meeting, March 28, 2017

City Clerk:  Ordinance #9627 on first reading. All those in favor of the passage of this ordinance 
on first reading, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted.

City Clerk:  Ordinance #9627 on second and final reading. All those in favor of the passage of 
this ordinance on second and final reading, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all voted 
aye. Motion adopted.

Mayor Jensen: By reason of the roll call votes on first reading and then upon second and final 
readings, Ordinance #9627 is declared to be lawfully adopted upon publication as required by 
law.

#9628 - Consideration of Approving Assessments for South Locust Business 
Improvement District

This item was related to the aforementioned Board of Equalization hearing.

Motion by Paulick, second by Steele to approve Ordinance #9628.

City Clerk:  Ordinance #9628 on first reading. All those in favor of the passage of this ordinance 
on first reading, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted.

City Clerk:  Ordinance #9628 on second and final reading. All those in favor of the passage of 
this ordinance on second and final reading, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all voted 
aye. Motion adopted.

Mayor Jensen: By reason of the roll call votes on first reading and then upon second and final 
readings, Ordinance #9628 is declared to be lawfully adopted upon publication as required by 
law.

CONSENT AGENDA: Consent Agenda items G-12 and G-17 (Resolution #2017-91 and #2017-
96) were removed for further discussion. Motion by Donaldson, second by Stelk to approve the 
Consent Agenda excluding items G-12 and G-17. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion 
adopted.

Approving Minutes of March 14, 2017 City Council Regular Meeting.

#2017-81 - Approving Request from Kinkaider Brewing Co., LLC dba Kinkaider Brewing Co., 
316 North Pine Street for a Class “CK” Liquor License and Liquor Manager Designation for 
Delene Dilsaver, 1410 13th Street, Aurora, Nebraska.

#2017-82 - Approving Bid Award for Turbine Low Pressure Stage "O" Buckets at Platte 
Generating Station with EthosEnergy TC, Inc. of Chicopee, Massachusetts in an Amount of 
$370,220.00.

#2017-83 - Approving Bid Award for Fire Water Tank Interior Painting at Platte Generating 
Station with J. R. Stelzer Company of Lincoln, Nebraska in an Amount of $289,700.00.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 34 / 201



Page 5, City Council Regular Meeting, March 28, 2017

#2017-84 -  Approving Bid Award for Washington Street Parking and Storage Area - Project 
2017-PS-1 with Lacy Construction Company of Grand Island, Nebraska in an Amount of 
$96,000.00.

#2017-85 - Approving Change Order #1 for Auxiliary Boiler Re-tube at Platte Generating 
Station with Rasmussen Mechanical Services of Council Bluffs, Iowa for an Increase of 
$16,495.00 and a Revised Contract Amount of $326,804.00.

#2017-86 - Approving Kriz-Davis as the Sole Source Provider of AMI Electric Meters.

#2017-87 - Approving Bid Award for Sanitary Sewer District No. 539 with Starostka Group 
Unlimited, Inc. of Grand Island, Nebraska in an Amount of $105,483.25.

#2017-88 - Approving Bid Award for Lift Station No. 20 Upgrade and Force Main 
Rehabilitation & Lift Station No. 14 Abandonment; Project No. 2017-S-1 with The Diamond 
Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska in an Amount of $2,306,455.27.

#2017-89 - Approving Purchase of a New 5 CY Dump Truck for the Streets Division of the 
Public Works Department from Hansen International of Grand Island, Nebraska in an Amount of 
$77,830.00.

#2017-90 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement in Lot 10 & 11 of Summerfield Estates 
Tenth Subdivision– 3815 Meadow Way Trail & 1315 Diamond Road (TPCR Developments, 
LLC).

#2017-91 - Approving Rescission of Resolution No. 2017-16; Bid Award for Concrete Pavement 
and Storm Sewer Repairs for 2017 with OK Paving, Inc. of Hordville, Nebraska. Discussion was 
held concerning rebidding this project.

Motion by Nickerson, second by Minton to approve Resolution #2017-91. Upon roll call vote, all 
voted aye. Motion adopted.

#2017-92 - Approving Purchase of a New Heavy Duty Work Truck Cab/Chassis for the Streets 
Division of the Public Works Department from the National Auto Fleet Group of Watsonville, 
California in an Amount of $50,604.00.

#2017-93 - Approving Temporary Construction Easement for Lift Station No. 20 Upgrade and 
Force Main Rehabilitation (Titan Machinery, Inc.-3040 Langenheder Street).

#2017-94 - Approving Acquisition of Permanent Easement for Lift Station No. 20 Upgrade and 
Force Main Rehabilitation (Titan Machinery, Inc.-3040 Langenheder Street).

#2017-95 - Approving the 2017 High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) Grant.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 35 / 201



Page 6, City Council Regular Meeting, March 28, 2017

#2017-96 - Approving Bid Award for Breathing Air Compressor with Mako distributed by 
FireGuard, Inc. of Omaha, Nebraska in an Amount of $28,826.27. Fire Captain Tim Heimer 
answered questions concerning the bid. He stated 6 cascade bottles were not a part of this bid as 
they found them cheaper from a different source.

Motion by Nickerson, second by Paulick to approve Resolution #2017-96. Upon roll call vote, 
all voted aye. Motion adopted.

#2017-97 - Approving Updates to Golf Pro Contract with Don E. Kruse of Grand Island, 
Nebraska.

#2017-98 - Approving Amendment to the Agreement with Grow Grand Island.

REQUESTS AND REFERRALS:

Consideration of Request from Harold Rosenkotter and Deborah Spaulding for a Conditional 
Use Permit to Allow for Construction of a House while Living in the Existing Double-wide 
Trailer located at 3204 South Shady Bend Road. This item was related to the aforementioned 
Public Hearing. Harold Rosenkotter, 4110 Terrace Circle spoke in support.

Motion by Stelk, second by Minton to approve the request as presented. Upon roll call vote, all 
voted aye. Motion adopted.

Consideration of Request from Central Nebraska Transload I, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit 
to Allow for a Chemical/Hazardous Transload (railcar to truck) and Railcar Storage located at 
1213/1215-1221 E Hwy 30. This item was related to the aforementioned Public Hearing.

Motion by Jones, second by Donaldson to approve the request with conditions mentioned under 
the Public Hearing. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted.

Consideration of Request from Brian and Cathryn Sack for a Conditional Use Permit to Allow 
for a Used Automobile Sales Business located at 703 & 709 West 3rd Street. This item was 
related to the aforementioned Public Hearing. Discussion was held concerning the conditions for 
car lots and enforcement. Building Department Director Craig Lewis stated enforcement was by 
complaints received. The Community Service Officers (CSO’s) also enforced these types of 
issues.

Motion by Paulick, second by Stelk to approve the request. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. 
Motion adopted.

RESOLUTIONS:

#2017-99 - Consideration of Approving the Semi-Annual Report by the Grand Island Area 
Economic Development Corporation/Citizens Advisory Review Committee on the Economic 
Development Program Plan. This item was related to the aforementioned Public Hearing. 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 36 / 201



Page 7, City Council Regular Meeting, March 28, 2017

Discussion was held concerning upcoming projects. Mr. Taylor stated they were working on 
several with two looking very good.

Motion by Nickerson, second by Minton to approve Resolution #2017-99. Upon roll call vote, all 
voted aye. Motion adopted.

#2017-100 - Consideration of Approving Letter of Support for Essential Air Service (EAS) to the 
Department of Transportation (DOT). Mike Olson, Executive Director of the Central Nebraska 
Regional Airport gave a presentation regarding Essential Air Service (EAS). On March 15, 2017 
the Hall County Airport Authority conducted a public meeting to discuss the bids for Essential 
Air Service to Grand Island, Nebraska. The Hall County Airport Authority was recommending 
American Airlines to the Department of Transportation (DOT) for air service for the Central 
Nebraska Regional Airport under the Essential Air Service Program.

Motion by Donaldson, second by Minton to approve Resolution #2017-100. Upon roll call vote, 
all voted aye. Motion adopted.

#2017-101 - Consideration of Approving Parking Restrictions on Custer Avenue at the North 
Front Street Intersection. Public Works Director John Collins reported that on February 28, 2017 
this item was presented to City Council for action, however after discussion it was requested the 
initial 150’ parking restriction both north and south from the North Front Street intersection be 
reviewed. Upon review the Public Works Department found that 75’ would be sufficient to 
improve the sight distance at the intersection.

Discussion was held regarding the 75’ no parking zone. Mentioned were stop signs and speeding 
at this intersection.

Motion by Minton, second by Nickerson to approve Resolution #2017-101. Upon roll call vote, 
all voted aye. Motion adopted.

PAYMENT OF CLAIMS:

Motion by Minton, second by Donaldson to approve the Claims for the period of March 15, 2017 
through March 28, 2017 for a total amount of $4,384,365.46. Upon roll call vote, 
Councilmembers Steele, Minton, Donaldson, Haase, Jones, Stelk, and Nickerson voted aye. 
Motion adopted. Councilmember Paulick abstained.

Questioned was a claim from the Food & Beverage account for asbestos abatement in the 
amount of $9,997.00. City Attorney Jerry Janulewicz commented on the parameters for the Food 
& Beverage fund.

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 8:14 p.m.

RaNae Edwards
City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 37 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-2

Approving Minutes of April 4, 2017 City Council Study Session

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 38 / 201



CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA

MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION
April 4, 2017

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a Study Session of the City Council of the City of Grand 
Island, Nebraska was conducted in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 100 East First Street, on 
April 4, 2017. Notice of the meeting was given in the Grand Island Independent on March 29, 
2017.

Mayor Jeremy L. Jensen called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. The following Councilmembers 
were present: Mitch Nickerson, Mark Stelk, Julie Hehnke, Linna Dee Donaldson, Michelle 
Fitzke, Vaughn Minton, Roger Steele, and Mike Paulick. Councilmembers Chuck Haase and 
Jeremy Jones were absent. The following City Officials were present: City Administrator Marlan 
Ferguson, City Clerk RaNae Edwards, Finance Director Renae Griffiths, City Attorney Jerry 
Janulewicz and Public Works Director John Collins.

Mayor Jensen introduced Community Youth Council member Sarah Sugita.

INVOCATION was given by Community Youth Council member Sarah Sugita followed by the 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

SPECIAL ITEMS:

Discussion on City Sidewalks. Public Works Director John Collins reported that in July and 
August, 2016 the City Council discussed the sidewalk repair process and requested the issue of 
sidewalks be studied for potential changes to policy. Concern was expressed by Council about 
how sidewalk issues were identified (complaint based), as well as the cost to the property 
owners.

Mr. Collins stated there were three types of issues with sidewalks: Absent – no sidewalk present; 
ADA – fails to meet federal American Disabilities Act standards, and Deficient – broken or 
uneven sidewalks.

The following Absent Actions were presented:
 Sidewalks added as properties are developed
 Sidewalks added as streets are brought up to current standards (except for some industrial 

streets)
 Sidewalk Districts (last was in 2007)
 Gap Sidewalk Projects (funding discontinued FY 2015)

ADA actions would allow for an annual $165,000 program to add ramps to curbs where projects 
were recently completed. Ramps and driveway slopes were required as property was developed. 
Property owners were to correct deficiencies as they became award of them and/or the City 
would take action to require owners to correct deficient sidewalks. Issues with the current policy 
were the City taking action on a complaint basis and the cost to the property owners.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 39 / 201



Page 2, City Council Study Session, April 4, 2017

The following Cost Sharing Options were presented:
 Budget $25,000/year for Sidewalk Rehabilitation program
 Establish reimbursement at 50% of ADA unit bid
 Exclude owners who refuse to cooperate and require Council resolution

Discussion was held regarding complaints, property owner request, ADA project areas, and other 
areas identified. Comments were made concerning funds available through Habitat for Humanity 
for people who needed help with their sidewalks. Mr. Collins answered questions regarding State 
Statute language of “reasonable condition”. The Public Works Department follows ADA 
requirements. Mentioned was educating the public regarding sidewalk repair and identifying 
only the deficient areas that needed repaired.

Discussion was held regarding a reimbursement program. Mentioned was using the homeowners 
homestead exemption, if there was one, to figure a reimbursement amount. Sidewalk 
improvement districts were discussed.

Discussion on Complete Streets: Regional Planning Director Chad Nabity introduced Amy 
Roberts from the Central District Health Department (CDHC). Ms. Roberts explained what 
complete streets were and the benefits to the city. She stated the CDHC had received a grant in 
2015 related to the Walkable Communities Initiative sponsored by the Nebraska Department of 
Health and Human Services. As part of the process they sponsored a walking and biking summit 
and several public meetings with citizens and interested parties in Grand Island. One of the goals 
from the summit was to create a complete streets policy for the City of Grand Island. A complete 
streets policy recognizes that all modes of transportation (motor vehicles, transit, walking, & 
biking) are important to a community.

Mr. Nabity reviewed the complete streets policy for the City of Grand Island. He mentioned the 
reasons to have a complete street policy were for consistency, clear direction, sustainability, and 
long term impact. Discussion was held regarding the enforcement of the policy, gaps, and 
retrofitting.

Discussion on City Owned Parking Lots: Public Works Director John Collins reported that the 
City currently had 10 public lots, 2 YMCA lots, Grand Generation Center lot and city employee 
lot. Based on the August 1, 2016 report provided by Olsson Associates there was $2,390,000.00 
in necessary repair costs to the parking lots evaluated. Reviewed were the results from the study.

The following alternatives were presented:
 Increase assessments
 Contribute Other City funds
 Divest/Sale
 Lease

Amos Anson, 4234 Arizona Avenue spoke in support of the City being a partner in downtown. 
Mentioned was the possibility of acquiring parking lots and charging for parking.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 40 / 201



Page 3, City Council Study Session, April 4, 2017

Mr. Collins stated there was $750,000 in this year’s budget that could be used on the parking 
lots. Discussion was held concerning the costs of repairing the parking lots. It was recommended 
that the Public Works start working on those parking lots that were used the most and proceed 
with the repair work.

Director of Downtown BID Cara Lemburg, 1507 West 1st Street answered questions regarding 
where the employees of the businesses in downtown park. President of the Downtown BID Tom 
Ziller, 324 West 18th Street spoke concerning a parking management strategy that they were 
working on.

Comments were made concerning the downtown assessments not being equitable.

ADJOURNMENT:    The meeting was adjourned at 8:50 p.m.

RaNae Edwards
City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 41 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-3

Approving Liquor Manager Designation for Jay Gates, 6220 
Thompson Creek Boulevard, Lincoln, Nebraska for Applebee’s 
Neighborhood Grill & Bar, 721 Diers Avenue

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 42 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 

From: RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Request from Jay Gates, 6220 Thompson Creek 
Boulevard, Lincoln, Nebraska for Liquor Manager 
Designation with Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar, 
721 Diers Avenue

Presenter(s): RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Background

Jay Gates, 6220 Thompson Creek Boulevard, Lincoln, Nebraska has submitted an 
application with the City Clerk’s Office for a Liquor Manager Designation in conjunction 
with Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Gar, 721 Diers Avenue.

This application has been reviewed by the Police Department and City Clerk’s Office. 
See Police Department report attached.

Discussion

City Council action is required and forwarded to the Nebraska Liquor Control 
Commission for issuance of all liquor manager designations. All departmental reports 
have been received as required by City Code. Mr. Gates has completed a state approved 
alcohol server/seller training program. Staff recommends approval.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may:

1. Approve the requests.
2. Forward the requests with no recommendation.
3. Take no action on the requests.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 43 / 201



Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve the request for Liquor 
Manager Designation.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the request from Jay Gates, 6220 Thompson Creek Boulevard, Lincoln, 
Nebraska for Liquor Manager Designation in conjunction with the Class “I-101516” 
Liquor License for Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar, 721 Diers Avenue.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 44 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 45 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 46 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-4

Approving Liquor Manager Designation for Alexander Briner, 
1314 14th Street, Aurora, Nebraska for Prairie Pride Brewing 
Company, 115 E. South Front Street - Class “LK-116938” Liquor 
License

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 47 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 

From: RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Request from Alexander Briner, 1314 14th Street, Aurora, 
NE for Liquor Manager Designation with Prairie Pride 
Brewing Company, 115 E. South Front Street – Class 
“LK-116938” Liquor License

Presenter(s): RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Background

Alexander Briner, 1314 14th Street, Aurora, NE has submitted an application with the 
City Clerk’s Office for a Liquor Manager Designation in conjunction with Prairie Pride 
Brewing Company, 115 E. South Front Street for their Class “LK-116938” Liquor 
License.

This application has been reviewed by the Police Department and City Clerk’s Office. 
See Police Department report attached.

Discussion

City Council action is required and forwarded to the Nebraska Liquor Control 
Commission for issuance of all liquor manager designations. All departmental reports 
have been received. Mr. Briner has completed a state approved alcohol server/seller 
training program. Staff recommends approval.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may:

1. Approve the requests.
2. Forward the requests with no recommendation.
3. Take no action on the requests.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 48 / 201



Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve the request for Liquor 
Manager Designation.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the request from Alexander Briner, 1314 14th Street, Aurora, NE for 
Liquor Manager Designation in conjunction with the Class “LK-116938” Liquor License 
for Prairie Pride Brewing Company, 115 E. South Front Street.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 49 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 50 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-5

#2017-102 - Approving Request from Request from Prairie Pride 
Brewing Company, LLC dba Prairie Pride Brewing Company, 115 
E. South Front Street for a Class “C” Liquor License and Liquor 
Manager Designation for Alexander Briner, 1314 14th Street, 
Aurora, Nebraska
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-1.

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 51 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-102

WHEREAS, an application was filed by Prairie Pride Brewing Company, LLC 
doing business as Prairie Pride Brewing Company, 115 E. South Front Street for a Class "C" 
Liquor License; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing notice was published in the Grand Island 
Independent as required by state law on April 1, 2017; such publication cost being $17.26; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on April 11, 2017 for the purpose of 
discussing such liquor license application.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that:

____ The City of Grand Island hereby recommends approval of the above-
identified liquor license application contingent upon final inspections.

____ The City of Grand Island hereby makes no recommendation as to the 
above-identified liquor license application.

____ The City of Grand Island hereby makes no recommendation as to the 
above-identified liquor license application with the following stipulations:
__________________________________________________________

____ The City of Grand Island hereby recommends denial of the above-
identified liquor license application for the following reasons:_________
__________________________________________________________

____ The City of Grand Island hereby recommends approval of Alexander 
Briner, 1314 14th Street, Aurora, Nebraska as liquor manager of such 
business.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 52 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-6

#2017-103 - Approving Final Plat and Subdivision Agreement for 
Meadowlark West 10th Subdivision

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 53 / 201



Council Agenda Memo

From: Regional Planning Commission

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Meadowlark West 10th Subdivision – Final Plat

Presenter(s): Chad Nabity, AICP, Regional Planning Director

Background

This property is located north of Faidley Avenue and east of Highway 281 in the City of 
Grand Island, in Hall County, Nebraska. It consists of 2 lots and 2.945 acres.  

Discussion

The plat for Meadowlark West 10th Subdivision, Final Plat was considered by the 
Regional Planning Commission at the April 5, 2017 meeting.  

A motion was made by Hoggatt and seconded by Maurer to approve the plat as 
presented.  

A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed with 10 members present and voting in 
favor (Allan, O’Neill, Ruge, Maurer, Robb, Monter, Rainforth, Rubio, Hoggatt and Kjar) 
and no members voting no or abstaining.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Move to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that Council approve the final plat as presented.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 54 / 201



Sample Motion

Move to approve as recommended.
 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 55 / 201



Developer/Owner

Allen Phase III, LLC
1115 W. Second St.
Hastings, NE 68902

To create 2 lots located north of Faidley Avenue and east of Highway 281, in the City of 
Grand Island, in Hall County, Nebraska.  
Size: 2.945 acres

Zoning:  B2 – General Business
Road Access: City Roads 
Water Public: City water is available.
Sewer Public: City sewer is available. 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 56 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 57 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-103

WHEREAS Allen Phase III, LLC, a Nebraska Limited Liability Company, being 
the owner of the land described hereon, have caused the same to be surveyed, subdivided, platted 
and designated as “MEADOWLARK WEST 10TH SUBDIVISION”, a subdivision being in part 
of the Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of Section Thirteen (13), Township Eleven (11) North, Range 
Ten (10) West of the 6th P.M., in the City of Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska, and has 
caused a plat thereof to be acknowledged by it; and

WHEREAS, a copy of the plat of such subdivision has been presented to the 
Boards of Education of the various school districts in Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska, as 
required by Section 19-923, R.R.S. 1943; and

WHEREAS, a form of subdivision agreement has been agreed to between the 
owner of the property and the City of Grand Island,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the form of subdivision agreement 
herein before described is hereby approved, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute such 
agreement on behalf of the City of Grand Island.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the final plat of  “MEADOWLARK WEST 
10TH  SUBDIVISION,” as made out, acknowledged, and certified, is hereby approved by the 
City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to 
execute the approval and acceptance of such plat by the City of Grand Island, Nebraska.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 58 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-7

#2017-104 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement - 750 Allen 
Drive - Allen Phase III LLC
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-2.

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger, Stacy Nonhof

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 59 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-104

WHEREAS, a public utility easement is required by the City of Grand Island 
from Allen Phase III LLC, to survey, construct, inspect, maintain, repair, replace, relocate, 
extend, remove, and operate thereon,  public utilities and appurtenances, including lines and 
transformers; and; 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on April 11, 2017 for the purpose of 
discussing the proposed acquisition of a twenty (20.0) foot utility easement located in the City of 
Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska; and more particularly described as follows:

The Northerly twenty (20.0) feet of the westerly two hundred (200.0) feet of Lot 
Eleven (11), Meadowlark West Third Subdivision, Grand Island, Hall County, 
Nebraska.

The above described easement and right-of-way containing a calculated area of 
0.092 acres, more or less, as shown on the plat dated 3/9/2017, marked Exhibit 
“A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island be, and 
hereby is, authorized to acquire a public utility easement from Allen Phase III LLC, on the 
above-described tract of land.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 60 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 61 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-8

#2017-105 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement - 4171 
Nevada Avenue - Blackburn
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-3.

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger, Stacy Nonhof

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 62 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-105

WHEREAS, a public utility easement is required by the City of Grand Island 
from Corey and Amanda Blackburn, to survey, construct, inspect, maintain, repair, replace, 
relocate, extend, remove, and operate thereon,  public utilities and appurtenances, including lines 
and transformers; and; 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on April 11, 2017 for the purpose of 
discussing the proposed acquisition of a five (5.0) foot utility easement located in the City of 
Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska; and more particularly described as follows:

The westerly five (5.0) feet of Lot Four (4), Ross Heights Second Subdivision, in 
the City of Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska.

The above described easement and right-of-way containing a calculated area of  
.020 acres, more or less, as shown on the plat dated 3/10/2017 marked Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island be, and 
hereby is, authorized to acquire a public utility easement from Corey and Amanda Blackburn, on 
the above-described tract of land.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

___________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 63 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 64 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-9

#2017-106 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement - 4179 
Nevada Avenue - Greamy, LLC
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-4.

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger, Stacy Nonhof

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 65 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-106

WHEREAS, a public utility easement is required by the City of Grand Island 
from Greamy, LLC, to survey, construct, inspect, maintain, repair, replace, relocate, extend, 
remove, and operate thereon,  public utilities and appurtenances, including lines and 
transformers; and; 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on April 11, 2017 for the purpose of 
discussing the proposed acquisition of a five (5.0) foot utility easement located in the City of 
Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska; and more particularly described as follows:

The easterly five (5.0) feet of Lot Three (3), Ross Heights Second Subdivision, in 
the City of Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska.

The above described easement and right-of-way containing a calculated area of  
.020 acres, more or less, as shown on the plat dated 3/10/2017 marked Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island be, and 
hereby is, authorized to acquire a public utility easement from Greamy, LLC, on the above-
described tract of land.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_____________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 66 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 67 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-10

#2017-107 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement - 4480 Gold 
Core Drive - Inland Truck Parts Company
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-5.

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger, Stacy Nonhof

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 68 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-107

WHEREAS, a public utility easement is required by the City of Grand Island 
from Inland Truck Parts Company, to survey, construct, inspect, maintain, repair, replace, 
relocate, extend, remove, and operate thereon,  public utilities and appurtenances, including lines 
and transformers; and; 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on April 11, 2017 for the purpose of 
discussing the proposed acquisition of a twenty (20.0) foot utility easement located in the City of 
Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska; and more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the northeast corner of Lot Two (2), Platte Valley Industrial Park 
Tenth Subdivision, in the City of Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska; thence 
southerly along the easterly line of said Lot Two (2), a distance of fifty (50.0) 
feet; thence deflecting right 90°00’00” and running westerly, a distance of two 
hundred eighty (280.0) feet to the point of termination.

The above described easement and right-of-way containing 0.13 acres, more or 
less, as shown on the plat dated 3/10/2017, marked Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island be, and 
hereby is, authorized to acquire a public utility easement from Inland Truck Parts Company, on 
the above-described tract of land.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_____________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 69 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 70 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-11

#2017-108 - Approving Construction of Vehicle Storage Building at 
1306 W. 3rd Street

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger, Stacy Nonhof

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 71 / 201



Council Agenda Memo

From: Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director
Stacy Nonhof, Assistant City Attorney

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Vehicle Garage & Warehouse – 1306 W. 3rd Street 
(2017-VS-1)

Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director

Background

A Request for Proposal (RFP) was issued for the complete design, materials, installation 
and construction of a pre-engineered metal building for the Utilities Department. The 
facility is proposed as a vehicle garage and warehouse on the north side of the Utilities 
Engineering/Customer Service Center located at 1306 W. 3rd Street.

Currently, pick-ups, cars and staff SUV’s used by the Meter Readers and Engineering 
Division are on the open parking lot when not is use and during the night. On a recent 
evening, a department pick-up was damaged and had all four wheels and tires stolen 
while it was outside the offices (see pictures).

The new building would be a secure location to park and store vehicles and prevent such 
acts of theft and vandalism. The building would provide protection from exposure to the 
weather and environment, thereby extending the life of the units and reducing 
maintenance and repair costs.

Presently, spare equipment is stacked in a small shop area as there is no longer space for 
storage of materials. The building’s original warehouse was remodeled into the 
Engineering Division’s offices when Customer Service was relocated from City Hall to 
the Third Street building. The proposed addition would provide the warehouse and 
storage space needed for the department.

Discussion

In accordance with City Procurement Codes, the RFP was publicly advertised and the 
notice was sent to eleven different firms. Four companies submitted proposals and they 
have been reviewed and evaluated.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 72 / 201



Firm Proposal Pricing Completion
Chief Construction Co., Grand Island, NE $372,613.00 August 18, 2017
Lacy Construction Co., Grand Island, NE $504,500.00 December 20, 2017
Rathman Manning Construction, Chapman, NE $527,000.00 August 16, 2017
Sampson Construction, Kearney, NE $692,000.00 August 31, 2017

The proposal provided from Chief Construction Company of Grand Island complies with 
the RFP’s requirements to furnish a turn-key building and has the lowest listed price of 
$372,613.00. Their schedule indicated 100 days to complete the work.

The design and construction of a vehicle garage and warehouse was included in the 2016-
2017 Fiscal Year Budget under Distribution Building Improvements.  The estimated cost 
of the project was $450,000.00.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Move to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve the proposal from Chief 
Construction Company of Grand Island, Nebraska, in the amount of $372,613.00.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the proposal from Chief Construction Company in the amount of 
$372,613.00.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 73 / 201



Vandalism to vehicles left in the lot overnight

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 74 / 201



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

  
Stacy Nonhof, Purchasing Agent

Working Together for a
                    Better Tomorrow, Today

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
FOR

VEHICLE STORAGE FACILITY 2017-VS-1

RFP DUE DATE: March 23, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.

DEPARTMENT: Utilities

PUBLICATION DATE: February 20, 2017

NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 11

SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS RECEIVED

Rathman Manning Construction Chief Construction
Chapman, NE Grand Island, NE

Lacy Construction Sampson Construction
Grand Island, NE Kearney, NE 

cc: Tim Luchsinger, Utilities Director Pat Gericke, Utilities Admin. Assist.
Marlan Ferguson, City Administrator Renae Griffiths, Finance Director
Christy Lesher, Utilities Engineering Tom Barnes, Utilities Engineer

P1944

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 75 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 76 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-108

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island extended a Request for Proposals for a 
Vehicle Garage and Warehouse at 1306 West 3rd Street, according to plans and specifications on 
file with the Utilities Department; and

WHEREAS, proposals were due by 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, March 23, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, Chief Construction Company of Grand Island, Nebraska submitted a 
proposal in accordance with the terms of the advertisement and plans and specifications and all 
other statutory requirements contained therein, such proposal being in the amount of 
$372,613.00; and

WHEREAS, the proposal from Chief Construction is less than the budgeted 
amount for the Vehicle Garage and Warehouse at 1306 West 3rd Street.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the proposal from Chief Construction 
Company in the amount of $372,613.00 for the Vehicle Garage and Warehouse at 1306 West 3rd 
Street, is hereby approved.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

___________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 77 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-12

#2017-109 - Approving Purchase of Distribution Transformers

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger, Stacy Nonhof

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 78 / 201



Council Agenda Memo

From: Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director
Stacy Nonhof, Assistant City Attorney

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Distribution Transformers

Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director

Background

On average, Grand Island Utilities purchases around 240 distribution transformers per 
year. These transformer purchases can be broken down into three categories: Three Phase 
Pad-mount, Single Phase Pad-mount, and Single Phase Pole-mount. With procurement 
lead times of up to 12 weeks, it is beneficial to have a pre-approved bid sheet available 
for ordering. The proposed agreements here-in will run through the end of the calendar 
year.

Discussion

The Utilities Department evaluated three independent categories of transformers: Three 
Phase Pad-mount, Single Phase Pad-mount, and Single Phase Pole-mount. The request 
for proposals was advertised and sent to six vendors. Proposals were received by 4:00 
p.m. on March 21, 2017, with the following six vendors submitting proposals:

Cahoon Sales, Inc.
Central Moloney, Inc.
Kriz-Davis Company

Dutton-Lainson Company
Wesco Distribution, Inc.

Rural Electric Supply Cooperative

Using a matrix of the Department’s established evaluation criteria, which included 
Proposal Responsiveness, Company Experience, Unit Pricing, and Guarantees, the 
proposals were reviewed by the department’s division managers.  A tabulation of the 
evaluations’ factors indicated a consensus for the following selections:

      Company                       Category
Cahoon Sales, Inc. Three Phase Pad-mount Transformers
Central Moloney, Inc. Single Phase Pad-mount Transformers
Kriz-Davis Company Single Phase Pole-mount Transformers

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 79 / 201



Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Move to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

The project specifications provide that the City may award all categories to a single 
vendor or award contracts to three separate vendors, whichever method provides the best 
value to the City. City Administration recommends that the Council award the purchasing 
contracts to individual vendors, by category, in the following manner:

Cahoon Sales Inc. Three Phase Pad-mount Transformers
Central Moloney, Inc. Single Phase Pad-mount Transformers
Kriz-Davis Company Single Phase Pole-mount Transformers

Sample Motion

Move to approve the purchase of Distribution Transformers from Cahoon Sales Inc., 
Central Moloney, Inc., and Kriz-Davis Company, based upon the Utilities Department’s 
evaluation criteria.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 80 / 201



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

  
Stacy Nonhof, Purchasing Agent

Working Together for a
                    Better Tomorrow, Today

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
FOR

DISTRIBUTION TRANSFORMERS

RFP DUE DATE: March 21, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.

DEPARTMENT: Utilities

PUBLICATION DATE: March 1, 2017

NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 6

SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS RECEIVED

WESCO Distribution Central Moloney, Inc.
Sioux City, IA Pine Bluff, AR

Kriz-Davis Company Dutton-Lainson Company
Grand Island, NE Hastings, NE

ERMCO % Cahoon Sales, Inc. RESCO
Iowa City, IA Middleton, WI

cc: Tim Luchsinger, Utilities Director Pat Gericke, Utilities Admin. Assist.
Marlan Ferguson, City Administrator Renae Griffiths, Finance Director
Stacy Nonhof, Purchasing Agent Christy Lesher, Utilities Engineering
Ryan Schmitz, Assist. Utilities Director

P1955

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 81 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-109

WHEREAS, Grand Island Utilities purchases about 240 distribution transformers 
per year and the transformer purchases can be broken down into three categories; three phase 
pad-mount, single phase pad-mount and single phase pole-mount; and

WHEREAS, it takes up to 12 weeks to receive the transformers once they are 
ordered and it is beneficial to have a pre-approved bid sheet available for ordering; and

WHEREAS, a Request for Proposal was sent to six different companies, and after 
division manager’s review, a tabulation of the evaluations’ factors indicated a consensus for the 
following purchases:

         Company   Category
Cahoon Sales, Inc. Three Phase Pad-mount Transformers
Central Moloney, Inc. Single Phase Pad-mount Transformers
Kriz-Davis Company Single Phase Pole-mount Transformers

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Utilities Department is hereby 
allowed to purchase distribution transformers from the above three vendors by category listed.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 82 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-13

#2017-110 - Approving State Bid Award for Two (2) 2017 
Chevrolet Pickups for the Wastewater Division of the Public 
Works Department

Staff Contact: John Collins, P.E. - Public Works Director

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 83 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 
From: Marvin Strong PE, Wastewater Plant Engineer

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Approving State Bid Award for Two (2) 2017 Chevrolet 
Pickups for the Wastewater Division of the Public Works 
Department

Presenter(s): John Collins PE, Public Works Director

Background 

The Wastewater Division of the Public Works Department budgeted for new two (2) 
pickups to replace pickups currently used in the collection section of the division. Funds 
are available in the approved FY 2016/2017 budget for this purchase.

Discussion

The collection section of the Wastewater Division, within the Public Works Department 
has two (2) dually pickups in need of replacement. These vehicles are used in the daily 
work of cleaning and maintaining the City’s sanitary sewer mains. Each vehicle is 
serviced routinely by the City’s Repair Shop, with oil changes every 100-150 hours, 
which is equivalent to 5,000 miles for a passenger vehicle.

Pickup “A” is a 2017 Chevrolet Silverado 3500HD crew cab, which will replace a 2003 
Ford pickup with 94,085 miles / 11,951 hours. The 2003 Ford pickup cost $29,000.00 
brand new and has cost in excess of $44,000.00 (parts and labor) since the Wastewater 
Division purchased it.  The ratio of expense to purchase price is 1.276. Upon evaluation 
by the City’s Repair Shop this vehicle has been serviced a number of times over the last 
year due to starting issues and the engine shows signs of wear with oil use in between 
scheduled servicing. This vehicle is used to pull a vacuum unit, weighing over four (4) 
tons when full, to augment the sewer cleaning process; mainly operating in easements 
and alleys and is used to respond to after hour emergencies.

The vehicle specifications awarded under State of Nebraska Contract #14588 OC for a 
2017 Chevrolet Silverado 3500 4x4 meets all of the requirements for the Wastewater 
Division vehicle. Husker Auto Group of Lincoln, Nebraska submitted a bid with no 
exceptions in the amount of $44,468.77. There are sufficient funds for this purchase in 
Account No. 53030054-85625.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 84 / 201



Pickup “B” is a 2017 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 crew cab, which will replace a 2005 Ford 
pickup with 91,585 miles / 10,464 hours. The 2005 Ford pickup cost $30,790.00 brand 
new and has cost in excess of $37,000.00 (parts and labor) since the Wastewater Division 
purchased it. Upon evaluation by the City’s Repair Shop this vehicle has an oil leak on 
the front right of the engine, possible leak on oil cooler and oil leak on both right & left 
back of the engine. The new vehicle will be used to transport traffic signs and barricades 
for traffic control necessary.

The vehicle specifications awarded under State of Nebraska Contract #14364 OC for a 
2017 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 4x4 meets all of the requirements for the Wastewater 
Division vehicle. Husker Auto Group of Lincoln, Nebraska submitted a bid with no 
exceptions in the amount of $30,442.28. There are sufficient funds for this purchase in 
Account No. 53030054-85625.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Move to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve the State Bid Awards to 
Husker Auto Group of Lincoln, Nebraska in the total amount of $74,911.05 for one (1) 
2017 Chevrolet Silverado 3500 4x4 and one (1) 2017 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 4x4 for 
the Wastewater Division of the Public Works Department.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the resolution.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 85 / 201



Unit 784 - 2003 Ford Medium Duty Truck with 94,085 Miles and 12,032 Hours. It is paired with a jetter to clean 
sanitary sewers. Unit 784 pulls a vacuum unit on a trailer that weighs over four tons when full. It pulls the 
vacuum unit on pavement, gravel, alleys and easements.  We feel hours are a better indicator of use than 
miles. Fleet Services changes the oil in Vehicle 784 every 100 to 150 hours or 80 +/- Oil changes, which 
translates to 401,000 + miles @ 5,000 miles per oil change.

                                            
                Profile, Exterior 1           Profile, Exterior 2

                                              
Front of engine possible head gaskets – Pinion seal on rear axel
not sure of leak location until you start 
working on it

Back of engine, not sure of leak location
until you start working on it

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 86 / 201



Unit 790 - 2005 Ford F-350 with 91,585 Miles and 10,464 Hours. Unit 790 will be replaced with a Pick-Up Truck 
slated for Sanitary Sewer Collection System work. The new unit will be used to transport traffic signs and 
barricades for traffic control necessary. 

                                                   
                Profile, Exterior 1           Profile, Exterior 2
                  

                                                   
                  Engine oil leak  Front engine oil leak

                                                  
                Rear engine oil leak  Steering hose

Turbo hose

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 87 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-110

WHEREAS, the Wastewater Division of the Public Works Department for the 
City of Grand Island, budgeted for two (2) 2017 Chevrolet Pickups in the 2016/2017 fiscal year; 
and

WHEREAS, said vehicles, one (1) 2017 Chevrolet Silverado 3500 HD crew cab 
and one (1) 2017 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 crew cab, can be obtained from the State Contract 
holder; and

WHEREAS, purchasing the vehicle from the State Contract holder meets all 
statutory bidding requirements; and

WHEREAS, the funding for such vehicle is provided in the 2016/2017 budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the purchase of one (1) 2017 
Chevrolet Silverado 3500 HD crew cab in the amount of $44,468.77 and one (1) 2017 Chevrolet 
Silverado 1500 crew cab in the amount of $30,442.28 from the State Contract holder, Husker 
Auto Group of Lincoln, Nebraska, is hereby approved.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 88 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-14

#2017-111 - Approving Bid Award for Curb Ramp Project No. 
2017-CR-2

Staff Contact: John Collins, P.E. - Public Works Director

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 89 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 
From: John Collins PE, Public Works Director

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Approving Bid Award for Curb Ramp Project No. 2017-
CR-2

Presenter(s): John Collins PE, Public Works Director

Background 

On March 17, 2017 the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department advertised 
for bids for the construction of a second round of curb ramps at various intersections in 
the City. The City is required to upgrade public sidewalk ramps to conform to American 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) standards.

To aid in ADA compliance efforts the City entered into a contract during FY 2015/2016 
with Saul Ramos Construction, Inc. of Shelton Nebraska to install curb ramps along 4th 
Street, from Sycamore Street to Eddy Street in connection with a Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) through Community Development.

On March 14, 2017, via Resolution No. 2017-73, City Council awarded Curb Ramp 
Project No. 2017-CR-1 to Galvan Construction, Inc. in the amount of $109,540.99. This 
project will allow for installation of curb ramps in a section of Faidley Avenue and 
Koenig Street.

SECTION A -  Faidley Avenue
 Section #A1.   Faidley Avenue & Custer Avenue
 Section #A2.   Faidley Avenue & Waldo Avenue
 Section #A3.   Faidley Avenue & Alpha Street
 Section #A4.   Faidley Avenue & Grace Avenue
 Section #A5.   Faidley Avenue & Carey Avenue
 Section #A6.   Faidley Avenue & Ruby Avenue
 Section #A7.   Faidley Avenue & Darr Avenue
 Section #A8.   Faidley Avenue & Boggs Avenue
 Section #A9.   Faidley Avenue & White Avenue

SECTION B – Koenig Street
 Section #B1.  Koenig Street & Cedar Street

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 90 / 201



Discussion

Three (3) bids were received and opened on March 30, 2017.  The Engineering Division 
of the Public Works Department and the Purchasing Division of the City’s Attorney’s 
Office have reviewed the bids that were received. A summary of the bids is shown below.

BIDDER EXCEPTIONS BID PRICE
The Diamond Engineering Co. of Grand Island, NE None $150,354.00*
Galvan Construction, Inc. of Grand Island, NE None $159,337.40*
Morten Construction, LLC of Loomis, NE None $199,933.48*
*corrected calculation

Curb Ramp Project No. 2017-CR-2 addresses curb ramps at the following locations.
SECTION A -  Custer Avenue

 Section #A1.   Custer Avenue & 4th Street
 Section #A2.   Custer Avenue & 5th Street
 Section #A3.   Custer Avenue & 6th Street
 Section #A4.   Custer Avenue & North Front Street

SECTION B – North Front Street
 Section #B1.  North Front Street & Waldo Avenue
 Section #B2.  North Front Street & Grace Avenue
 Section #B3.  North Front Street & Carey Avenue
 Section #B4.  North Front Street & Ruby Avenue
 Section #B5.  North Front Street & Darr Avenue
 Section #B6.  North Front Street & Boggs Avenue
 Section #B7.  North Front Street & White Avenue 

SECTION C – 1st Street 
 Section #C1.  1st Street & Monroe Street

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Move to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve the bid award to the low 
compliant bidder, The Diamond Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska in the 
amount of $150,354.00.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the bid award.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 91 / 201



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

  
Stacy Nonhof, Purchasing Agent

Working Together for a
                    Better Tomorrow, Today

BID OPENING

BID OPENING DATE: March 30, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.

FOR: Curb Ramp Project 2017-CR-2

DEPARTMENT: Public Works

ESTIMATE: $215,000.00

FUND/ACCOUNT: 21000001-2100-40004

PUBLICATION DATE: March 17, 2017

NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 15

SUMMARY

Bidder: Diamond Engineering Co. Galvan Construction, Inc.
Grand Island, NE Grand Island, NE

Bid Security: Universal Surety Co. Cashier’s Check
Exceptions: None None

Bid Price:
Section A: $46,788.00 $  49,971.00
Section B: $94,508.20 $100,198.80
Section C: $11,037.80 $    9,372.60
Total Bid: $152,334.00 $159,542.40

Bidder: Morten Construction, LLC
Loomis, NE

Bid Security: Western Surety Co.
Exceptions: None

Bid Price:
Section A: $  65,126.48
Section B: $128,722.00
Section C: $    8,652.88
Total Bid: $202,501.36

cc: John Collins, Public Works Director Catrina DeLosh, PW Admin. Assist.
Marlan Ferguson, City Administrator Renae Griffiths, Finance Director
Stacy Nonhof, Purchasing Agent Tim Golka, PW Engineer

P1958

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 92 / 201



)

)

) )

)

) ) ) ) ) )

)

W
H
IT
E
 A
V
E

3R
D 
ST

 W

C
A
R
E
Y
 A
V
E

7TH ST W

W
A
L
D
O
 A
V
E

BLAKE ST

R
U
B
Y
 A
V
E

D
A
R
R
 A
V
E
 N

C
U
S
T
E
R
 A
V
E
 N

G
R
A
C
E
 A
V
E
 N

NO
RT

H 
FR

ON
T S

T W

FAIDLEY AVE W

B
R
O
A
D
W
E
L
L
 A
V
E
 N

2N
D 
ST

 W

6T
H 
ST

 W

5T
H 
ST
 W

4T
H 
ST
 W

A
D
A
M
S
 S
T
 N

GEORGE ST

SO
UT

H 
FR

ON
T 
ST
 W

JE
F
F
E
R
S
O
N
 S
T
 N

OL
D 
LI
NC

OL
N 
HW

Y 
W

M
A
D
IS
O
N
 S
T
 N

8T
H 
ST
 W

A
L
P
H
A
 S
T
 N

1S
T S

T W

S
TO
E
G
E
R
 D
R

B
O
G
G
S
 A
V
E
 N

W
A
S
H
IN
G
T
O
N
 S
T
 N

T
IL
D
E
N
 S
T
 N

M
O
N
R
O
E
 S
T
 N

L
O
G
A
N
 S
T
 N

H
A
R
R
IS
O
N
 S
T
 N

CLARENCE ST

BA
U
M
A
N
N
 D
R

B
R
O
A
D
W
E
L
L
 A
V
E
 N

H
A
R
R
IS
O
N
 S
T
 N

4TH ST W

6TH ST W

M
A
D
IS
O
N
 S
T
 N

2N
D 
ST

 W

5TH ST W

B
O
G
G
S
 A
V
E
 N

M
O
N
R
O
E
 S
T
 N

q
Proposed for 2017-CR-2

Location

) Custer & N Front

) Custer & 4th

) Custer & 5th

) Custer & 6th

) Waldo & N Front

) Grace & N Front

) Carey & N Front

) Ruby & N Front

) Darr & N Front

) Boggs & N Front

) White & N Front

) Monroe & 1st

PLAN

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

APPVD. BY:

SCALE

03-16-2017

MWL

NONE

Proposed ADA 

For 2017-CR-2

Curb Ramp Locations 1

1TAG

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 93 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-111

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island invited sealed bids for Curb Ramp Project 
2017-CR-2, according to plans and specifications on file with the Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on March 30, 2017 bids were received, opened, and reviewed; and

WHEREAS,  The Diamond Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska 
submitted a bid in accordance with the terms of the advertisement of bids and plans and 
specifications and all other statutory requirements contained therein, such bid being in the 
amount of $150,354.00; and

WHEREAS, The Diamond Engineering Company’s bid is less than the estimate 
for such project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the bid of The Diamond Engineering 
Company of Grand Island, Nebraska in the amount of $150,354.00 for Curb Ramp Project 2017-
CR-2 is hereby approved as the lowest responsible bid.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed 
to execute a contract with such contractor for such project on behalf of the City of Grand Island.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 94 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-15

#2017-112 - Approving Amendment No. 1 to Engineering 
Consulting Services Related to W Stolley Park Rd and Engleman 
Rd Sanitary Sewer Extension; Project No. 2017-S-3 and Sanitary 
Sewer District No. 540T; W US Highway 30 and Engleman Rd / 
West Park Plaza Sanitary Sewer Extension

Staff Contact: John Collins, P.E. - Public Works Director

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 95 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 
From: John Collins PE, Public Works Director

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Approving Amendment No. 1 to Engineering Consulting 
Services Related to W Stolley Park Rd and Engleman Rd 
Sanitary Sewer Extension; Project No. 2017-S-3 and 
Sanitary Sewer District No. 540T; W US Highway 30 
and Engleman Rd / West Park Plaza Sanitary Sewer 
Extension

Presenter(s): John Collins PE, Public Works Director

Background

Sanitary Sewer Project No. 2017-S-3 will plan, design and build for an extension of the 
sanitary sewer from Stolley Park Road and Freedom Drive intersection west to just 
beyond the planned new west US Highway 30 realignment.  Sanitary Sewer District No. 
540T will continue west to serve the West Park Plaza Mobile Home Park.  West Park 
Plaza is within city limits and in need of City sanitary services.

On February 14, 2017, via Resolution No. 2017-32, City Council approved an agreement 
with Olsson Associates of Lincoln, Nebraska in the amount of $98,840.00 for 
engineering design services related to West Stolley Park Road and Engleman Road 
Sanitary Sewer Extension; Project No. 2017-S-3.

Discussion

The original agreement with Olsson Associates requires an amendment to cover further 
survey work necessary west of Engleman Road and to the West Park Plaza lift station. 
This amendment also addresses easement negotiations with four (4) property owners and 
the design for the additional approximately 1,300 foot sewer extension. This amendment 
will be in the amount of $18,242.00 for a revised agreement of $117,082.00.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 96 / 201



1. Move to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve Amendment No. 1 to the 
original agreement with Olsson Associates of Lincoln, Nebraska, in the amount of 
$18,242.00.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the resolution.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 97 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 98 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-112

WHEREAS, on February 14, 2017, via Resolution No. 2017-32 the Grand Island 
City Council approved entering into an agreement with Olsson Associates of Lincoln, Nebraska 
in the amount of $98,840.00 for engineering design services relates to West Stolley Park Road 
and Engleman Road Sanitary Sewer Extension; Project No. 2017-S-3; and

WHEREAS, the original agreement is now being amended to allow further survey 
work, easement negotiations and design for additional sewer extension; and

WHEREAS, such amendment is in the amount of $18,242.00, for a revised 
agreement amount of $117,082.00; and

WHEREAS, Amendment No. 1 to the original agreement with Olsson Associates 
of Lincoln, Nebraska is required to proceed with this project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that Amendment No. 1 with Olsson 
Associates of Lincoln, Nebraska for engineering consulting services related to Sanitary Sewer 
Project No. 2017-S-3 and Sanitary Sewer District No. 540T is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed 
to execute such amendment on behalf of the City of Grand Island.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 99 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-16

#2017-113 - Approving Request from Grand Island Substance 
Abuse Prevention Coalition/Tobacco Free Hall County for 
Permission to Use City Streets/Trails and State Highway for the 
Outrun Addiction Family Fun Run

Staff Contact: John Collins, P.E. - Public Works Director

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 100 / 201



Council Agenda Memo
From: John Collins PE, Public Works Director

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Consideration of Approving Request from Grand Island 
Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition / Tobacco Free 
Hall County for Permission to Use City Streets/Trails and 
State Highway for the Outrun Addiction Family Fun Run

Presenter(s): John Collins PE, Public Works Director

Background

The Grand Island Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition / Tobacco Free Hall County 
organization has submitted a request to use both City streets and State highway for the 
Outrun Addiction Family Fun Run, which is scheduled to take place on May 20, 2017 
from approximately 7:00am to 12:00pm. Council approval and notice to the Nebraska 
Department of Roads is necessary for the route of such event.
 

Discussion

The Outrun Addiction Family Fun Run will require the use of City streets/trails, as well 
as crossing US Highway 34. Please see the attached map for the route.

State Statute 39-1359 requires the City Council to approve the route and for the City to 
then inform the Nebraska Department of Roads that the route has approval if it closes or 
blocks any part of a State highway. This is a requirement for any race, parade or march 
that would create some closure of the highway. This action then makes the City 
responsible for the liability of using a State highway for the event.

The Grand Island Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition / Tobacco Free Hall County 
organization did submit the City’s Public Event Application, which has been reviewed by 
the appropriate departments with no comments or issues noted for denial of such request.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Move to approve

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 101 / 201



2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve The Grand Island Substance 
Abuse Prevention Coalition / Tobacco Free Hall County organization’s route for the 
Outrun Addiction Family Fun Run and direct that the Nebraska Department of Roads be 
notified of this action.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the resolution.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 102 / 201



Start

Finish

Outrun Addiction Family Fun Run
Route Map

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 103 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-113

WHEREAS, the Grand Island Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition / Tobacco 
Free Hall County organization has made application with the City of Grand Island to use City 
streets/trails and State highway for the Outrun Addiction Family Fun Run; and

WHEREAS, the Grand Island Substance Abuse Prevention Coalition / Tobacco 
Free Hall County organization has worked with the City in planning the route; and

WHEREAS, specific wording is required by the Nebraska Department of Roads 
(NDOR) pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat §39-1359, and

WHEREAS, the City accepts the duties set out in neb. Rev. Stat. §39-1359, and 
that if a claim is made against the State, the City shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
State from all claims, demands, actions, damages, and liability, including reasonable attorney’s 
fees, that may arise as a result of the special event, more specifically defined as the Outrun 
Addiction Family Fun Run to be held on May 20, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the route for the special event necessitates the usage of US Highway 
34; crossing at the City’s hike/bike trail between Central Community College and Stuhr 
Museum, Grand Island, Nebraska; and

WHEREAS, the special event will be held on May 20, 2017, with the control of 
US Highway 34 at the City’s hike/bike trail between Central Community College and Stuhr 
Museum being assumed by the City at 7:00am on May 20, 2017 and ending at 12:00 pm on May 
20, 2017, at which time control of US Highway 34 at the City’s hike/bike trail crossing between 
Central Community College and Stuhr Museum, shall revert to the State.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Notice of Use of City Streets and 
State Highways to accommodate the Outrun Addiction Family Fun Run to be held on May 20, 
2017 is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Nebraska Department of Roads shall be 
notified of the approved route and this Notice.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 104 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-17

#2017-114 - Approving Purchase of 911 Voice/Data Logging 
Recorder

Staff Contact: Jon Rosenlund

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 105 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 

From: Jon Rosenlund, Emergency Management Director

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Replacement Recorder Purchase for Emergency 
Management/911 

Presenter(s): Jon Rosenlund, Emergency Management Director

Background

The construction of the new EM-911 building requires the purchase and installation of a 
voice and data recorder for telephone calls, as well as emerging Next Generation 911 data 
such as text, photos, and video. The Emergency Management Department’s current 
recording device recently suffered a failure. Repairs were made to keep the current 
hardware working, temporarily, but complete failure is anticipated and a replacement 
system is necessary. The replacement equipment will be NextGen 911 capable.

Discussion

The Emergency Management Department records all telephone and radio traffic in the 
911 center in order to provide adequate records for quality assurance, liability protection, 
and to also serve the records needs of all the local public safety and law enforcement 
agencies in Hall County. Recently, the 12 year old recorder equipment suffered a 
catastrophic failure and required the installation of used and outdated parts to maintain 
operation. It is anticipated that this repair is a short-term solution before an inevitable, 
final and complete hardware failure.

With the construction of the new Emergency Management/911 Facility, the Department 
had budgeted for the installation of a new recorder, capable of recording traditional 
audio, as well as data that will result in the upgrades to Next Generation 911. In light of 
the impending failure of the current equipment, the Department is planning to purchase 
its replacement box earlier than originally expected. Working with our current recording 
software provider, a quote for a new recorder was provided, totaling $32,280.00. The old 
recorder will be set aside and employed as the “back up” recorder, allowing for the 
transition from our current facility to moving into the new facility.

The Emergency Management Department recommends the purchase of a Voice & Data 
Logging Recorder from WahlTek of Des Moines, Iowa in the amount of $32,280.00.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 106 / 201



Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Move to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve this purchase of a Voice & 
Data Logging Recorder from WahlTek of Des Moines, Iowa in the amount of 
$32,280.00.

Sample Motion

Move to approve this purchase of a Voice & Data Logging Recorder from WahlTek of 
Des Moines, Iowa in the amount of $32,280.00.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 107 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 108 / 201



 

 
 
 

515.244.5535 / 800.995.9245 
http:// wahltek.com 

2711 Grand Avenue. Des Moines, IA  50312 

  
                      
  

   

March 30, 2017 
 
 
Mindy Osterman 
Grand Island – Hall County 
Emergency Management Communications 
Emergency Management Coordinator 
 
 
RE: Sole Source Letter 

 
Dear Mindy Osterman: 

The purpose of this letter is to verify that Wahltek, Inc. is the sole provider of equipment and technical 
expertise required to upgrade and maintain the existing Eventide Voice Logging Recorder. The 
Eventide Voice Logger and all associated spare parts and accessories are designed and 
manufactured exclusively by Eventide and are not available from another source.  In addition, all 
Extended Warranty Services, repair and warranty claims are managed exclusively by Eventide. Any 
work performed by non-authorized personnel will void all warranties and claims. 

The Eventide Voice Recorder, Media Works and Media Agent solutions is a series of software and 
workstation/server products designed specifically, and only, by Eventide to support its Eventide Digital 
Media Recorder. 

The digital voice recorders are configured with various levels of software and hardware that 
accommodate an agency based on channel quantity and call volume.  

The Eventide Voice Recorder is also the only equipment that will allow current archived voice 
recordings to be transferred to an upgraded Eventide NextGen voice recorder. Any other product will 
require the legacy equipment to remain online to access any archived audio. 

Please call me if you have any questions or need additional information. 
 
 
Sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Jeff Yates 
Recording Systems Representative 
WahlTek, Inc 
2711 Grand Ave 
Des Moines, IA 50312 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 109 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-114

WHEREAS, the Grand Island City Council approved the construction of a new 
Emergency Management & 911 Facility; and

WHEREAS, this new facility requires an voice and data logging recorder to 
maintain records of all telephone and radio audio, as well as data from emerging Next 
Generation 911 sources such as text, photo and video; and

WHEREAS, the current recorder recently suffered a catastrophic failure and is 
likely to completely fail without warning in the near future; and

WHEREAS, the new recorder will be moved to the new Emergency Management 
& 911 Facility upon its construction for long term use, and

WHEREAS, Wahltek, Inc. of Des Moines, Iowa is the sole provider of equipment 
and technical expertise required to upgrade and maintain the existing Eventide Voice Logging 
Recorder.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that City staff members are authorized and 
directed to purchase a Voice & Data Logging Recorder from Wahltek, Inc. of Des Moines, Iowa 
in the amount of $32,280.00.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 110 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-18

#2017-115 - Approving Police Department 21-Month Victims of 
Crime Act (VOCA) Grant Application

Staff Contact: Robert Falldorf, Police Chief

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 111 / 201



Council Agenda Memo

From: Police Department

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: 2017 VOCA Grant Application

Presenter(s): Robert Falldorf, Police Chief

Background

The Police Department has received a Victims Of Crime Act (VOCA) Federal grant for 
several years. The VOCA grant funds support the Police Department Victim/Witness 
Unit. The VOCA grant requires a 20% match from the City. The U.S. Department of 
Justice (DOJ) has changed the VOCA grant fiscal year from an October 1st to June 30th 
grant period to a July 1st to June 30th grant period.  Due to this change this grant 
application will cover a 21-month grant period from October 1st, 2017 through June 30th, 
2019 and all subsequent grants, unless amended, will then run for one year on the July 
through June fiscal period.

The Police Department is applying for a 21-month VOCA grant requesting $179,462 
from the federal government with a match of $44,865 ($32,782 of this amount will be an 
in-kind match, meaning office supplies, telephone, two computers, and volunteers and the 
remaining $12,083 will be the actual amount paid by the City for benefits of our VOCA 
Director and VOCA Advocate).  The total amount for this grant including the federal 
share and match share will be $224,327.

This action is to obtain Council approval to apply for the grant. It does not obligate the 
City to accept the grant if approved. Approval of an awarded grant will require Council 
approval at a later date.

Discussion

The Police Department has received a Victims Of Crime Act (VOCA) grant for several 
years. The department must have City Council approval to apply for a grant and also to 
accept a grant if awarded. VOCA grants require a 20% match of costs by the City. 
Personnel salary and benefits must be a cash match while the remaining match can be in-
kind. The Police Department must have City Council approval to submit an application 
for a VOCA grant and City Council approval to accept a grant when awarded.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 112 / 201



Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Move to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council approve the application for a 21-month 
Victims Of Crime Act (VOCA) grant by the Police Department to the U.S. Department of 
Justice.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the Police Department’s 21-month Victims Of Crime Act (VOCA) 
grant application to the U.S. Department of Justice to fund the Victim/Witness Unit.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 113 / 201



Page 1 of 22

Grant Number _______________________
        (State Use Only)

NEBRASKA CRIME COMMISSION
2017 Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) & State Victim Assistance (SA)

Grant Application

CONTINUATION PROGRAMS –YEAR 3
(Programs funded through VOCA in FY 2015 or FY 2016)

Review the following application carefully as significant changes have been made to the format.

Section I:  Applicant Information 

1.  Application Name: (Agency/Organization) 
[The application must be the agency that will receive 
and disperse the grant funds]  

Name:  City of Grand Island Telephone:  (308) 385-5444
Fax:             (308) 385-5486

2.  Applicant Federal Employer ID #:  
[Must be the 9 digit number assigned to agency]                                                               

47-6006205

3.  Applicant DUNS#: 040919607

4.  Address of Applicant:
        [PHYSICAL address of agency, Include last four digits 

of zip code]
P.O. Box 1968, Grand Island, NE 68802-1968

5.  Title of Project: Grand Island / Hall County Victim Assistance Program

Name:    Jim Duering

Title:      Police Captain  
Telephone:  (308) 385-5400
Fax:             (308) 385-5398

Email:    jduering@gipolice.org

6.  Project Director:
[Receives all grant correspondence]

Address: 111 Public Safety Dr.
               Grand Island, NE 68801-8410
Name:    Kerry Garza

Title:      Coordinator 
Telephone:  (308) 385-5409
Fax:             (308) 385-5661

Email:    kgarza@gipolice.org

7.  Project Coordinator:
[Additional Contact Person]

Address: 111 Public Safety Dr.
               Grand Island, NE 68801-8410
Name:    Jessica Gracia

Title:      Police Records Clerk 
Telephone:  (308) 385-5400
Fax:             (308) 385-5398

Email:    jgracia@gipolice.org

8.  Fiscal Officer (Financial Point of 
Contact):

[Cannot be the Project Director]

Address: 111 Public Safety Dr.
               Grand Island, NE 68801
Name:    Jeremy Jensen

Title:      Mayor 
Telephone:  (308) 385-5444x140
Fax:             (308) 385-5486

Email:    MayorJensen@grand-island.com

9.  Authorized Official:
[NOTE: The authorized official would include county 
board chair, mayor, city administrator, state agency 
director, chair/vice-chair of non-profit agency]

Address: P.O. Box 1968
               Grand Island, NE 68802-1968                                          

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 114 / 201



Page 2 of 22

Prior Year(s) VOCA Funding Summary
10. Previous 5 years NCC funding for this project (if applicable)
Grant #12-VA-213 Amount: $46,110.00
Grant #13-VA-217 Amount: $46,110.00
Grant #14-VA-217 Amount: $57,471.00
Grant #15-VA-224 Amount: $94.474.00
Grant #16-VA-222 Amount: $95,907.00

11. Area Served by this Project (Counties/Cities)

Servicing the Metropolitan Service Area of the city of Grand Island, Nebraska to include Hall County rural areas 
and outlying cities and villages to include but not limited to: Alda, Wood River, Cairo, Boelus, and Doniphan.

12. Type of Agency:
   State Agency
   Unit of Local Government
   Private Non-Profit
   Native American Tribe or Organization
   Other: (indicate)                                             
 
13. Funds will be used primarily to:  (check only one)
   Expand services into a new geographic area
   Offer new types of services
   Serve additional victim populations
   Continue existing services to crime victims
   Other: (indicate)
14. If awarded, these funds will: (check only one)
   Start a New Victim Services Program
   Expand or Enhance Existing Program not funded by VOCA in previous years
   Continue Existing Program funded by VOCA in previous years
   Technology

15. Identify types of victims to be served with requested Victim Assistance funds and Match funds:

   Child Abuse/Physical 
   Child Abuse/Sexual
   DUI/DWI Victims
   Domestic Violence Victims
   Adult Victims/Sexual Assault
   Other – Burglary, Arson, Protection Order Violations, Stalking, 
Terroristic Threats, Criminal Mischief, Intimidation by Phone, Witness
Tampering, Strangulation, Theft, Identity Theft, Human Trafficking

   Elder Abuse
   Adult Survivors of Incest or Child Sexual Abuse
   Survivors of Homicide Victims
  Robbery
   Assault

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 115 / 201



Page 3 of 22

16. Agency Staff  & Volunteers (volunteers are required) # Full Time

Total # of agency volunteers (excluding board members) .5
# of volunteers that support this project only         (FTE) .5
Total # of paid agency staff  (FTE) 2
# of paid agency staff requested/match for VOCA  (FTE) 2

18. Project Summary (150 words or less):

The Grand Island/Hall County Victim Assistance Program is a public service office established to assist victims 
of crime throughout the criminal justice process in order to prevent any further victimization, to reduce the 
trauma of the crime experience, and to aid in the rebuilding of the victim to a state of well-being. The Program, 
made possible by a grant from the Nebraska Crime Commission, became operational in April 2004 and 
functions under the Administrative Division of the Grand Island Police Department. The program encompasses 
all of Hall County and includes victims/witnesses of certain crimes handled within the jurisdiction of the Grand 
Island Police Department, Hall County Sheriff’s Office, and occasionally the Nebraska State Patrol. The 
agency, conveniently located in the Law Enforcement Center, is staffed with a full-time bilingual coordinator, a 
full-time advocate and a part-time volunteer, and is open Monday through Friday 8:00am to 10:00pm. 

17. Webinar viewed:
☒  Live

☐Recorded (attach 
certification)

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 116 / 201



Page 4 of 22

BUDGET SUMMARY-Year 3 (FY 2017)

Category Requested Amount Match Share Total Project Cost

A.  Personnel $177,737 $28,380 $206,117

B.  Consultants/Contracts $ $ $

C.  Travel $1,725 $ $1,725

D.  Supplies/Operating Expenses $ $16,485 $16,485

E.  Equipment $ $ $

F.  Other Costs $ $ $

G.  Indirect Costs $ $ $

MATCH WAIVER if applicable $ $

TOTAL AMOUNT $179,462 $44,865 $224,327

% Contribution 80% 20% 100%

CERTIFICATION:
I hereby certify the information in this application is accurate and as the Authorized Official for this 
project, hereby agree to comply with all provisions of the grant program and all other applicable state 
and federal laws.

[NOTE: The Authorized Official position may include the county board chair, mayor, city administrator, state agency director, 
chair/vice-chair of non-profit organization or any agent that has the legal authority to act on behalf of the organization]

Name of Authorized Official (type or print):  Jeremy Jensen

Title:  Mayor

Address:  P.O. Box 1968

City, State, Zip+4:  Grand Island, NE 68802-1968

Telephone:  308-385-5444, Ext. 140

Signature of Authorized Official: 

Date:       

Proposed Project Period (month/day/year):  From 10-01-17   To  6/30/2019

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 117 / 201



Page 5 of 22

CATEGORY A – PERSONNEL  

TOTAL REQUEST: $177,737 TOTAL MATCH: $28,380

 Exempt/Non-exempt – position exempt from earning over-time/comp time or not?  
 New or Existing – position new within the agency (not project) or an existing position.
 % Time Devoted – Portion of time dedicated to the work of the project.
 Hours Per Week – total hours worked per week.  

 2016 Current Salary – Current annual (can be FY 2016) pay for the position.   
 2017 Salary – Annual pay for the position in the coming year (can be FY 2017).  
 Match – match provided through volunteer hours must be a separate line item/position. 

Title/Position
Coordinator Advocate Volunteer Hall County 

Inv.
GIPD Support 

Staff
TOTAL 
COSTS

New/Existing E E E E E
F-Time/P-Time F-Time F-time P-time P-time P-time
Exempt/Non-exempt Non-exempt Non-exempt Non-exempt Non-exempt Non-exempt
Total Hrs. Per Week 40 40 3.1 5 .693
% of Time Devoted 100% 100% 100% 25% 1.73% %
2016 Current Salary $46,171 $28,800 $ $ $ $
2017 Salary $48,471 $31,291 $ $ $ $
Requested Salary $83,893 $55,872 $ $ $ $ $139,765
Salary Match $3,900 $11,283 $1114 $ $  16,297
Requested Fringe $22,385 $15,587 $ $ $ $ $   37,972
Fringe Match $6,083 $6,000 $ $ $ $ $   12,083
TOTAL COSTS $112,361 $77,459 $3,900 $11,283 $1114 $ $ 206,117

Total Requested Salary Total Requested Fringe Total Salary Match Total Fringe Match
$139,765 $37,972 $16,297 $12,083

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 118 / 201



Page 6 of 22

CATEGORY A – PERSONNEL NARRATIVE:

Wages/Salaries

The City of Grand Island has a 15-step pay plan for non-union employees based on merit. Occasionally, as a result 
of union contract negotiations, non-union employees receive salary increases based on a predetermined percentage. 
The existing position of Coordinator will receive a Step 15 salary of $48,471.28. This is a full-time position based 
on 2080 hours per year at $23.3035 per hour with 100% of that time devoted to the project. The Coordinator’s 
salary is currently 100% funded by VOCA grant #16-VA-222 and the amount of federal funds requested for that 
position for the upcoming 21-month grant period is $83,893 rounded up from $83,892.60 ($23.3035 per hour x 80 
hours per pay period x 45 pay periods). 

The coordinator (bilingual in English/Spanish) works Monday through Friday 8:00am to 5:00pm. A list of duties 
includes: provide direct service to victims of crime; recruit, train, and supervise volunteers and full-time victim 
advocate; maintain proper records of  and coordinate all activities; promote public awareness of victim assistance 
services; distribute/conduct surveys, attend required and necessary trainings; coordinate and collaborate with 
community agencies; coordinate grant management activities. 

Our existing full-time Victim Advocate receives a Step 2 salary of the City’s 15-step pay plan, but will have 
progressed to a Step 4 salary by the end of this 21-month grant. 100% of that salary is currently funded by VOCA 
grant #16-VA-222. The position is based on 2080 hours per year at the rate of $15.0437 for 6 pay periods, $15.455 
for 26 pay periods, and $15.8776 for 13 pay periods, with 100% of that time devoted to the project. We are 
requesting federal funds for the advocate’s salary in the amount of $55,872, rounded down from $55,872.18 
($15.0437 per hour x 80 hours per pay period x 6 pay periods + $15.455 per hour x 80 hours per pay period x 26 
pay periods + $15.87 per hour x 80 hours per pay period x 13 periods). 

The advocate works Monday through Friday 1:00pm to 10:00pm, extending our business hours 5 hours per day. 
She is trained to work with children as well as adults and a list of duties includes: provide direct service to victims 
of crime, maintain proper records of all activities, promote public awareness of victim assistance services, 
distribute/conduct surveys, attend required and necessary trainings; and coordinate and collaborate with 
community agencies.

Volunteers for the program will provide conservatively 260 hours of service for the 21-month grant period, 
assisting with victim advocacy, recordkeeping, client surveys, and public awareness of victim assistance services. 
100% of that time will be devoted to the project and will amount to a local match of $3,900 (260 hours x $15.00). 
Hall County Attorney’s Part-Time Investigator will donate approximately 250 hours of service annually, 435 
hours for the 21-month grant period, assisting the program by locating victims and providing victim advocacy. 
100% of that time will be devoted to the project and will amount to a Hall County match of $11,283, rounded 
down from $11,283.45 (180 hours x $25.64 hourly wage + 255 hours x $26.15 hourly wage after 2% COLA).

Grand Island Police Department Support Staff will provide 61 hours of service to the program during the 21-
month grant period. Support personnel and light-duty police officers will assist the program by answering the 
telephone, serving victims, reviewing reports, setting up victim files, sending victim letters, filing, inputting data 
and maintaining records. 100% of that time will be devoted to the project and will amount to $1114, rounded down 
from $1114.47 (61 hours x average $18.27 per hour) City match.

The existing position of Project Director will contribute approximately 2% of his time, equal to roughly $3,306, 
rounded up from $3,305.53 (78 hours x $42.3786 per hour), to the project, but this amount will not be included in 
the federal request or match portion of the grant. The Director of the program will consult with the Coordinator 
regarding the program’s activities. He will maintain weekly Coordinator contact, conduct a quarterly staffing, 
assist with annual VOCA grant and quarterly reports, and prepare an annual written employee evaluation. 
Regarding direct victim service and specific cases, Director will continue to provide support, direction and 
guidance to Coordinator and victim advocate as needed. 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 119 / 201



Page 7 of 22

The existing Fiscal Officer will devote 2% of her time, equal to $1,348, rounded down from $1,348.36 (78 hours x 
$17.2867 per hour) to the project. However, her hours will not be included in the federal request or match portion 
of the grant. The Fiscal Officer will oversee the finances of the project and assist with VOCA reports. 

NOTE: Neither the Project Director’s nor the Fiscal Officer’s hours will be factored into the federal request or 
match portion of our grant.

Fringe Benefits

The total fringe benefits for the Coordinator are estimated at $28,468 for the 21-month grant period ($9,711 + 
$651 + $2,000 + $5,201 + $1,216 + $5,034 + $3,000 + $1,350+ $137 + $168, all figures rounded) and include the 
following: 

 Individual high deductible health insurance $9,710.55 rounded to $9,711 ($215.79 semi-monthly pre-
determined premium x 45 pay periods)

 Individual dental insurance $651.15 rounded to $651 ($14.47 semi-monthly pre-determined premium x 45 
pay periods) 

 Individual Health Savings Account Employer Contribution/Seed Money $2,000 ($1,000 per year to be paid 
January 2018 and January 2019) 

 Social Security $5,201.34 rounded to $5,201 ($83,892.60 x 6.2%) 
 Medicare $1,216.44 rounded to $1,216 ($83,892.60 x 1.45%) 
 Pension $5,033.56 rounded to $5,034 ($83,892.60 x 6%) 
 Bilingual Pay $3000 ($1,500.00 per year, to be paid 2nd payroll in November 2017 and November 2018) 
 Health Retirement Account $1,350 ($30 per paycheck x 45 paychecks) 
 Life insurance $136.50 rounded to $137 ($6.50 pre-determined monthly premium x 21 months) 
 Disability $167.79 rounded to $168 ($83,892.60 x .2%)

The total fringe benefits for the Victim Advocate are estimated at $21,587 for the 21-month grant period ($9,711 + 
$651 + $2,000 + $3,464 + $810 + $3,352 + $1,350 + $137 + $112, all figures rounded) and include the following:

 Individual high deductible health insurance $9,710.55 rounded to $9,711 ($215.79 semi-monthly pre-
determined premium x 45 pay periods)

 Individual dental insurance $651.15 rounded to $651 ($14.47 semi-monthly pre-determined premium x 45 
pay periods) 

 Individual Health Savings Account Employer Contribution/Seed Money $2,000 ($1,000 per year to be paid 
January 2018 and January 2019) 

 Social Security $3,464.08 rounded to $3,464.00 ($55,872.18 x 6.2%) 
 Medicare $810.15 rounded to $810 ($55,872.18 x 1.45%) 
 Pension $3,352.33 rounded to $3,352 ($55,872.18 x 6%) 
 Health Retirement Account $1,350 ($30 per paycheck x 45 paychecks) 
 Life insurance $136.50 rounded to $137 ($6.50 pre-determined monthly premium x 21 months)
 Disability $111.74 per year rounded to $112 ($55,872.18 x .2%) 

We are requesting federal funds for fringe benefits in the amount of $37,972 (Coordinator $22,385 + Victim 
Advocate $15,587) and the remaining $12,083 ($28,468 Coordinator + $21,587 Advocate - $37,972 federal 
request) will be paid by the City of Grand Island as a local match ($6,083 for the Coordinator and $6,000 for the 
Advocate). 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 120 / 201



Page 8 of 22

CATEGORY C – TRAVEL EXPENSES
NOTE: Submit a separate form for each travel purpose.

1. Travel Purpose:  2018 Conference on Crimes Against Women
2. Type of Travel             ☐Local                       ☐In-State                      ☒Out-of-State
3. Departure 
Point: Grand Island, NE Destination: Dallas, TX

4. Position(s) which will be traveling for this purpose: Full-Time Advocate
     
     
     
5. Cost Breakdown:

Expense Calculations Amount 
Requested

Applicant’s 
Match Total Cost

a. Mileage
Total Miles Mileage 

Rate
x $.535 $ $ $

b. Air Fare

     # of 
travelers

Cost per 
flight

     1 $279            $279 $           $ 279

c. Meals
# of days  # of 

travelers
Cost per 

day
 4    1 $64    $256     $       $ 256     

d. Lodging
# of nights # of rooms Rate per 

night
   5  1 $ 146   $730     $      $  730   

e. Other Costs (Must also be explained in budget narrative)
  Conference Registration Fee   $460 $ $460
     $ $ $
     $ $ $

TRAVEL TOTAL $1,725 $ $1,725

TRAVEL CATEGORY TOTAL $1,725 $     $1,725

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 121 / 201



Page 9 of 22

CATEGORY C-TRAVEL EXPENSES NARRATIVE:

The goal of the Conference on Crimes Against Women is to provide practical instruction, using current information, the 
newest ideas and most successful intervention strategies, to those professionals responsible for combating the many and 
varied forms of crimes against women. The conference is conducted for the sole purpose of providing training and delivering 
best practices to only those people employed by governmental or non-profit agencies in the fields of law enforcement, 
prosecution, social work, victim's advocacy, therapy, probation/parole, campus safety and medicine who work directly with 
victims of crime. Speakers’ focus includes but is not limited to best practice and cutting-edge training taught by local and 
national leading experts in the fields of domestic violence, human trafficking, stalking, strangulation, sexual assault, campus 
safety. 

It is our responsibility to ensure our advocates remain competent. It is our goal to be proactive in our practices. Our program 
continues to collaborate with community partners as well as to strive to develop new partnerships. Recently, our coordinator 
and advocate have been named as contacts with the local Human Trafficking Task Force and the Doane College Campus 
Safety Project. Our full-time advocate, who has now been with us 1 year, is well-trained in child victim issues. She has also 
attended Nebraska’s Victim Assistance Academy. It is necessary to broaden her knowledge and skill base to include other 
crimes specifically relevant to this program, so we would like to send her to the 13th Annual Conference on Crimes Against 
Women in 2018. The City’s training budget is limited, and without federal assistance provided through the VOCA grant, the 
advocate’s attendance at this conference will not be possible. 

Prices are not yet available for the 2018 conference, so we have based our estimates on the 2017 conference to be held this 
upcoming May. Advocate would fly to Dallas on Sunday, stay at the hotel suggested by the conference 5 nights, attend the 
conference Monday-Thursday, and fly out of Dallas on Friday. 

Air Fare: American Eagle has nonstop flights from Grand Island, NE to Dallas, TX at a current cost of $279 round trip. 
Flights out of Grand Island will eliminate mileage, lodging and per diem costs associated with having to fly out of Lincoln or 
Omaha. 

Meals: Per www.gsa.gov, current meal rate for Dallas, TX is $64 per day. We are requesting $256 ($64 per day x 4 days).

Lodging: Per www.gsa.gov, current lodging rate for Dallas, TX in May is $146 per night. We are requesting $730 ($146 per 
night x 5 nights, Sunday-Thursday). We will seek suggested lodging close to the conference so as to utilize free shuttle to and 
from the airport and to and from the conference, which will eliminate the need and cost for taxi and/or rental car. 

Other Costs: The conference registration fee this year is $460 for early registration, or $490 for general registration. We are 
requesting $460 for early registration fee.

Travel Total: $279 + $256 + $730 + $460 = $1,725

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 122 / 201



Page 10 of 22

CATEGORY D – SUPPLIES AND OPERATING EXPENSES
1. SUPPLIES:

Item Quantity Total Unit 
Price

% Allocated Amount 
Requested

Applicant’s 
Match Total Cost

% $ $ $
% $ $ $
% $ $ $
% $ $ $
% $ $ $
% $ $ $
% $ $ $

SUPPLIES SUBTOTAL $     $     $     

2. OPERATING EXPENSES:

Total Rate
(per 

month)

% Allocated Amount 
Requested

Applicant’s 
Match Total Cost

Rent-Equipment % $ $ $
Rent-Facilities $463 100% $ $9,723 $9,723
Telephone $  24 100% $ $   504 $   504
Utilities % $ $ $
Auto Lease % $ $ $
Photo Copying % $ $ $
Printing % $ $ $
Non-Consultant Contracted 
Services % $ $ $

Bookkeeping/Audit* % $ $ $
Other: Computer User Fees Coordinator $149 100% $3,129 $3,129
Other: Computer User Fees Advocate $149 100% $ $3,129 $3,129

OPERATING SUBTOTAL $     $16,485 $16,485

SUPPLIES AND OPERATING EXPENSES TOTAL $     $16,485 $16,485
*Cost of audit is only allowable if agency is required to complete an A-133.  Cost must be prorated to all funding sources

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 123 / 201



Page 11 of 22

SUPPLIES AND OPERATING EXPENSES NARRATIVE:

    

No federal funds are being requested for supplies, nor are they included in our match.

No federal funds are being requested for operating expenses, but they will be included in the match portion of our 
grant.

The Victim Assistance Program office is located in Grand Island’s Law Enforcement Center.  The City provides 
this space as an in-kind match. The 306 square foot office, with a secure entrance, provides a private area where 
we can meet with victims and their families and is appraised at a fair market value of $14 per square foot, as is the 
adjoining 91 square foot office. Utilities, 3 cubicles with computers, custodial services, and receptionists are 
included with the facility. Monthly rent is figured at $463.17 per month, rounded down to $463, or $9,723 for 21 
months ($463 x 21). Telephone service, also provided by the City, is estimated at $12 per user per month (Total 
2016 GIPD telephone cost ÷107 users), or $252 per user for 21 months ($12 x 21 months), and is included in the 
match portion of our grant in the amount of $504 ($252 per user for 21 months x 2 users, Coordinator and 
Advocate). 

The County operates a Spillman software criminal justice program.  Included on the system of shared data are the 
Hall County Sheriff, Hall County Attorney, Hall County Corrections, Hall County Court, and the Grand Island 
Police Department.  The user fee for this system, including Internet, email, and support service is approximately 
$149 per month, rounded down from $149.35 ($191,760 total annual cost ÷107 users ÷12 months), or $3,129 per 
user for 21 months ($149 per month x 21 months), and will be provided for 2 users, Coordinator and Advocate, as 
a local match of $6,258 ($3,129 per user x 2 users). 

The City Of Grand Island has made a vehicle available to the Victim Assistance Program staff and volunteers. 
Grand Island Police Department training funds have been and will be used to send the Program Coordinator 
and/or Victim Advocate to the annual Crime Victims’ Rights Week Conference in Omaha and to other relevant 
and affordable trainings. However, neither expense is figured into the grant.

Total supplies and operating expenses budget is $16,485 provided by Hall County and the City of Grand Island as 
a local match ($9,723 rent + $504 telephone + $6,258 computer user fees).

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 124 / 201



Page 12 of 22

Section III:  Sustainability, Goals, and Performance Measures 

Agency Budget and Funding Sources:
Agency budget should include all sources of funding to support all victim services provided by the program. Add lines as necessary 
under each category of funding source

Total Agency Victim Services Budget FY 2016 (Oct. 2016-Sept. 2017)
Funding Source Amount Received

VOCA $95,907
OTHER FEDERAL (list below)

STATE (list below)

LOCAL (list below)

OTHER (list below)

1. Does the agency expect any significant decreases and/or 
increases from prior year’s funding sources (Oct 2016-Sept. 2017) for fiscal year 2017/2018 (Oct 2017-
June 2019)?  If yes, note funding source and reasons for the expected change. 

No, the agency does not expect any significant decreases or increases from last year’s funding sources.

2. Identify at least three specific sustainability activities the 
agency has planned for the upcoming year.

1. Police Chief will do presentation to City Council to show continued need for service and funding.
2. Director and Coordinator will consider and discuss 1) restructuring program in order to continue under 
Administration Department at GIPD and 2) the details and feasibility of the program being absorbed by 
other local victim service providers or agencies
3. Coordinator will research other federal, state and local grants along with community foundations.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 125 / 201



Page 13 of 22

Activities / Timetables (Limit 2 pages)  
Add rows as needed.

1. Major Activities:  Identify any major activities that will be occurring over the course of the project.  These 
types of activities may be infrequent however; they are essential to the VOCA funded project’s success. 

MAJOR ACTIVITIES POSITION RESPONSIBLE
Attend Annual Victims’ Rights Conference 2018 and 2019 Coordinator or Advocate
Attend Crimes Against Women Conference Advocate

2. Reoccurring Activities: List those activities that will occur throughout the duration of the project.  These 
activities should focus on the VOCA funded project and task that are allowable under the VOCA grant 
program.    

 
REOCCURRING ACTIVITIES POSITION RESPONSIBLE

Assist with filing compensation claims (Required of all programs) Coordinator, Advocate, 
Volunteers

Provide direct services to  crime victims by phone, e-mail, or in person  Coordinator, Advocate, 
Volunteers

Prioritize need for service to Hispanic and elderly victims of crime Coordinator, Advocate, 
Volunteers

Conduct and Distribute Surveys Coordinator, Advocate, 
Volunteers

Conduct Community Presentations on Victim Assistance Program Coordinator, Advocate, 
Volunteers

Recruit, train, supervise volunteers Coordinator

Prepare quarterly reports in a timely manner Coordinator, Fiscal Officer, 
Project Director

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 126 / 201



Page 14 of 22

Continuation Information (Limit 3 pages) (Each question MUST be answered)

1. Describe the most recent (past year/12 months) funded grant project’s accomplishments and 
milestones. 

Retained 1 active volunteer and recruited 1 more
Maintained extended business hours (8:00a.m.to 10:00 p.m. Monday-Friday)
Continued to provide comprehensive services to crime victims in Hall County
Continued to provide bilingual services to Spanish-speaking victims
Continued to provide services to significant numbers of underserved populations
Distributed victim surveys as a best practice for program evaluation and determination of consumer 
satisfaction
Increased public awareness of services by distributing brochures and conducting presentations 
Continued to coordinate service with community agencies
Continued to meet or exceed goal objectives 
Continued to attend LB 1184 Investigative Team Meetings and LB 1184 Treatment Team Meetings
Continued to attend Coordinated Community Response Meetings
Continued to assist with training of new officers for Nebraska Law Enforcement Training Center by doing 
sexual assault and domestic violence role plays and panel discussions
Coordinator attended local training as part of Human Trafficking Task Force
Advocate attended child advocate training in Huntsville, Alabama and Annual Victim Rights Conference 
in Omaha

2. Provide results of Outcomes, Objectives and Performance Measures for VOCA FY 2016. 

Our goal last year was that crime victim safety be increased in Hall County. In order to best achieve that 
goal, we retained our previous years’ objectives. Because of vacation, weather, holidays, and training a 
new volunteer, our numbers were down the first quarter, but are almost back on track as of the end of the 
2nd quarter. We expect to meet or exceed our objectives by the end of the grant period. One objective was 
to increase the number of crime victims receiving needed services within the 12-months grant period. In 
the first two quarters, we served: 1189 victims (2706 Goal), 176 elderly (235 goal), 406 Hispanics (794 
goal), and 246 children (380 goal). Another objective was to maintain overall public awareness of victim 
services by distributing 680 brochures and conducting 4 community presentations. We have distributed 
400 brochures and conducted 2 presentations. Our third objective, to increase the number of crime victims 
receiving advocacy within the 12-month period, includes four performance measures: the number of crime 
victims who received personal advocacy, criminal justice support/advocacy, VINE/VINELINK assistance, 
and safety planning assistance. We have provided personal advocacy to 163 victims (541 goal) and 
criminal justice support/advocacy to 793 victims (1964 goal). At the 6-month mark 235 victims have 
received VINE/VINELINK assistance and 45 victims have received safety planning assistance in person. 
Our fourth objective was to distribute surveys to victims in order to measure the effectiveness of our 
services. We discuss that in more detail in the next section.

3. Describe how the agency is conducting surveys and utilizing the results to guide services provided 
to victims of crime. Also include other evidence based research used for development of programs. (i.e. 
evaluation of client satisfaction, research/tools utilized to ensure practices are based on strong empirical 
evidence of success, etc.)

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 127 / 201



Page 15 of 22

Following contact with the Victim Assistance Program, victims were asked to give simple yes or no 
answers to 3 questions: 1) Do you know more about community resources and help available to you, 2) Do 
you know more or different ways to plan for your safety, and 3) Do you have a better understanding of 
how the justice process works? The surveys were sent through the mail and email, and conducted face-to-
face and via telephone. At the 6-month mark of Grant #16-VA-222, we have distributed 310 surveys.  Of 
those, 245 responded (79%). We get a high response rate when we conduct the surveys over the telephone 
and face-to-face, and a moderate response rate to those emailed. We have a very few surveys returned via 
mail. Of the 245 who responded, 198 stated said they know more about community resources, 179 said 
they know more ways to plan for their safety, and 209 said they have a better understanding of the criminal 
justice process. The survey, at the bottom, allows for comments. Several of those who responded with a 
“no” told us they already knew about resources and/or the criminal justice process prior to this contact 
with us. A few clients answered with “NA.” 

We’ve attached in a separate email a copy of our survey along with the policies and procedures governing 
the survey process.
 

4. Explain problems, barriers or challenges during the previously funded grant project.  Discuss how 
these were addressed and the end results.   

The majority of our problems are typically routine in nature and related to victims’ individual cases as is 
par for the course with victim advocacy. In these instances we network very closely with our partner 
agencies and utilize community resources.   

Our ongoing struggle has been maintaining volunteers/volunteer hours and, thus, numbers of victims 
served. This last grant year, we retained our veteran volunteer, a retired deputy county attorney. In our first 
quarter, we did recruit and train a volunteer who was hired in the school system shortly after training and 
never came back to us. There is a lot of time that goes into training and supervising volunteers, and we get 
behind in other duties, so we are disappointed when they don’t stay. We do have a potential volunteer 
scheduled to come interview this month. 

With our office hours being extended to 10:00pm, we found that it took time for our partner agencies, 
especially swing shift law enforcement, to become accustomed to those new hours. Day-shift personnel 
routinely utilize our services. Other shifts, however, have historically emailed or left voicemails for us, 
expecting follow-up the next day. During the first quarter of the grant, our full-time advocate gave a 
presentation at a department-wide workshop for Grand Island Police Department.  She reminded officers 
that she is here in the office to assist with victims in the evenings and she answered specific questions 
regarding our offered services. We have since seen a significant increase in officer requests for victim 
assistance during the evening hours, thus, improving our response to victims’ immediate needs. 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 128 / 201



Page 16 of 22

Goals, Objectives & Performance Indicators
For each outcome listed clearly state objectives and performance measures to demonstrate the project’s progress towards achieving 
the stated outcome.  Copy the form for each separate outcome.

Outcomes, Objectives & Performance Measures 

Outcome:  Crime Victim Safety Will Be Increased In Hall County. *
Objective #1: Increase Number of Crime Victims Receiving Needed Services Within 12 Month Period.
Performance Measures:  Baseline 

Statistics
Projected 
Results

Number of victims served within 12 months 2597+1948 4590
Number of elderly victims served within 12 months 289+217 556
Number of Hispanic victims served within 12 months 721+541 1274
Number of children served within 12 months 430+323 828

Objective #2: Maintain Overall Public Awareness of Program and Services by Distributing 680 Brochures and 
Conducting 4 Community Presentations.
Performance Measures: Baseline 

Statistics
Projected 
Results

Number of brochures distributed 680+510 1190
Number of presentations conducted   4+3   7

Objective #3: Maintain Number of Crime Victims Receiving Advocacy Within 12 Month Period.
Performance Measures: Baseline 

Statistics
Projected 
Results

Number of crime victims who received personal advocacy 541+406 947
Number of crime victims who received criminal justice support/advocacy 1964+1473 3437
Number of crime victims referred to or registered for VINE/VINELINK 688+516 1204
Number of crime victims who received emotional support or safety 
services

539+404 943

Objective #4: Increase number of crime victims reporting improvement as a result of Victim Assistance 
Program services.
Performance Measures: Baseline 

Statistics
Projected 
Results

Number of surveys distributed within 12 months 396+297 762
Number of surveys completed within 12 months 257+193 495
Number of crime victims who said they know more about community 
resources 

234+176 410

Number of crime victims who said they know more ways to plan for their 
safety 

238+179 451

Number of crime victims who said they have a better understanding of how 
the justice process works

253+190 487

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 129 / 201



Page 17 of 22

*Baseline statistics shown are for 12 months plus 9 months, for a 21-month estimated total

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 130 / 201



Page 18 of 22

Section IV:  Required Forms (Section must be completed for continuation and new competitive funding requests)

Complete required forms (Certified Assurances; Certifications Regarding Lobbying, Debarment, & Drug Free Workplace; Applicant 
Disclosure of Pending Applications) with appropriate signatures in the grant application.   

CERTIFIED ASSURANCES

 1. The applicant assures that federal or state grant funds made available under the Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) 
and state victim assistance funds will not be used to supplant existing funds, but will be used to enhance or 
expand direct services to victims of crime.  

 2. The applicant assures that fund accounting, auditing, monitoring, and such evaluation procedures as may be 
necessary to keep such records as the Nebraska Commission on Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice (Crime 
Commission) shall prescribe will be provided to assure fiscal control, proper management, and efficient 
disbursement of funds received under the victim assistance grant program.

 3. The applicant assures that it shall maintain such data and information and submit such reports, in such form, at 
such times, and containing such information as the Crime Commission may require.

 4. The applicant certifies that the program contained in its application will meet requirements as stated in the 
Victim Assistance Grant Application Kit; that all information presented is correct; that there has been and will 
be throughout the life of the grant, appropriate coordination with affected agencies; and, that the applicant will 
comply with all provisions of the Victims of Crime Act and all other applicable federal and state laws.

 5. The applicant assures that it will comply and all of its contractors will comply, with the non-discrimination 
requirements of the Victims of Crime Act; Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975; and the Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations 28 CFR Part 42, 
Subparts C, D, E, and G and, Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Order 11375, and their 
implementing regulations.

 6. The applicant assures that programs will maintain information on victim services provided by race, national 
origin, sex, age, and handicap.

 7. The applicant assures that in the event a federal or state court, or federal or state administrative agency makes a 
finding of discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin or 
sex against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Crime Commission and 
the Office of Civil Rights Compliance (OCRC) of the Office of Justice Programs.

 8. The applicant assures that, if required, it will formulate an equal employment opportunity program (EEOP) in 
accordance with 28 CFR 42.301 et. seq., and submit a certification to the state that it has a current EEOP on 
file which meets the requirements therein.

 9. The applicant assures that it will comply and contractors will comply, with the provisions of the Office of 
Justice Programs "Financial and Administrative Guide for Grants," M 7100.01.

10. Pursuant to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, non-Federal entities expending 
$500,000 or more a year from all federal sources shall have a single organization-wide audit conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133.  Non-federal entities that expend less than $500,000 a 
year in Federal dollars from all sources are exempt from Federal audit requirements for that year.  However, 
financial records must be maintained in an acceptable accounting system and be available for review or audit 
by appropriate officials of Federal, state or local agencies. 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 131 / 201



Page 19 of 22

11. Confidentially of Research Information.  No recipient of monies under the Victims of Crime Act shall use or 
reveal any research or statistical information furnished under this program by any person and identifiable to 
any specific private person for any purpose other than the purpose for which such information was obtained in 
accordance with the Act.

12. Confidentiality of Victim Information - At no time shall a victim’s name, address, phone number or other 
identifying information be divulged to another individual or agency unless they are a part of the criminal 
justice system or Health and Human Services system unless the victim has given prior voluntary written 
consent for such release of information. 

 
13. The applicant agrees to submit all required reports in a timely manner.

14. The applicant agrees not to utilize federal or state victim assistance funds for crime prevention, community 
education, services to perpetrators, conference attendance by individual crime victims, lobbying, victim re-
location or services to witnesses other than the victim.

15. The applicant agrees to establish and maintain a Drug Free Workplace Policy.

16.   The applicant will comply, and all its contractors will comply with the Equal Treatment for Faith Based 
Organizations Title 28 C.F.R. part 38.  

CERTIFICATION

I certify that I have read and reviewed the above assurances, that the applicant will comply with all provisions of the 
Victims of Crime Act and all other applicable federal and state laws, and, that the applicant will implement the 
project as written, if approved by the Crime Commission.

(SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL)                                                         (DATE)

P.O. Box 1968, Grand Island, NE 68802-1968

(ADDRESS)

Jeremy Jensen                                                                   Mayor

(TYPED NAME) (TITLE)

(308) 385-5444, Ext 140
(TELEPHONE NUMBER)

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 132 / 201



Page 20 of 22

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTER; AND DRUG-
FREE WORPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they are required to attest.  Applicants should also review the 
instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form.  Signature of this form provides for compliance with certification 
requirements under 28 CFR Part 69, “New Restrictions on Lobbying” and 28 CFR Part 67, “Government-wide Debarment and Suspension and 
Government-wide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Grants).”  The certifications shall be treated as a material representation of fact upon which 
reliance will be placed when the Department of Justice determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.
1.  LOBBYING
As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, and implemented 
at 28 CFR Part 69, for persons entering into a grant or cooperative 
agreement over $100,000, as defined at 28 CFR Part 69, the applicant 
certifies that:

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or 
on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting 
to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, 
the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal grant 
or cooperative agreement;

(b)  If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or 
will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the 
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form – LLL, 
“Disclosure of Lobbying Activities,” in accordance with its instructions;

(c)  The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification 
be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers 
(including subgrants, contracts under grants and cooperative agreements, 
and subcontracts) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose 
accordingly. 

2.  DEBARTMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS (DIRECT RECIPIENT)
As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and 
implemented at 28 CFR Part 67, for prospective participants in primary 
covered transaction, as defined at 28 CFR Part 67, Section 67.510-

A.  The applicant certifies that it and its principals:

(a)  Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a State of 
Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any 
Federal department of agency;

(b)  Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been 
convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, 
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) 
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or 
State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, 
or receiving stolen property;

(c)  Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly 
charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with 
commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this 
certification; and 
(d)  Have not within a three-year period preceding this application had 
one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for 
cause or default; and 

B.  Where the applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in 
this certification, he or she shall attach an explanation to this application.

3.  DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN 
INDIVIUALS)
The applicant certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free 
workplace by:

A.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful 
manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled 
substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace and specifying the 
actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such 
prohibition:

B.  Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform 
employees about—

(a)  The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(b)  The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(c)  Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee 
assistance programs; and 

(d)   The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse 
violation occurring in the workplace;

C.  Notifying the employee in the statement that the employee will: 

(a)  Abide by the terms of the statement; and 

(b)  Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction of a criminal 
drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days 
after such convictions;

The subgrantee shall notify the Crime Commission in writing of any 
conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the 
workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.

The subgrantee certifies that it will take one or more of the following 
actions within 30 calendar days of receiving notice of the conviction: 

A.   Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to 
and including termination, consistent with the requirements of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or 
B.  Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse 
assistance of rehabilitation program approved for such purpose by a 
Federal, State or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate 
agency;
The subgrantee certifies that it will make a good faith effort to continue to 
maintain a drug-free workplace.  

Organization Name and Address:
City of Grand Island, P.O. Box 1968, Grand Island, NE 68802-1968

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Official
Jeremy Jensen, Mayor

___________________________________________________________

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 133 / 201



Page 21 of 22

Signature                                                     Date

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 134 / 201



Page 22 of 22

                                           
Applicant Disclosure of Pending Applications:

  
Applicants are to disclose whether they have pending applications for federally and or state funded grants  
that include requests for funding to support the same project being proposed under this solicitation and 
will cover the identical cost items outlined in the budget in the application under this solicitation.  Please 
mark none if you have no pending applications.  

Federal or State
Funding Agency

Solicitation Name / 
Project Name

Name/Phone/E-mail for Point of
Contact at Funding Agency

None None None

                 
Attachments:

Applicants are to attach the following items, if applicable:

Employee and Volunteer Job Descriptions (All must be provided to include % of time spent on duties)
Copy of Survey and Established Policy and Procedures

Indirect Cost Rate verification letter (Required for use of federally negotiated rates)
Non-Profit Status Verification (e.g. 501(c)(3) letter, if applicable to agency)

Match Waiver Request (If applicable)

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 135 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-115

WHEREAS, The U. S. Department of Justice has provided funding for Victims 
Of Crime Act (VOCA) grants and instituted a 21-month grant award process; and

WHEREAS, The Grand Island Police Department has a Victim/Witness Unit that 
serves as a valuable resource to victims of crime in our community; and

WHEREAS, the Police Department has received VOCA grant funding in past 
years  to support the Victim/Witness Unit; and

WHEREAS, the VOCA grant application must be submitted to the Nebraska 
Crime Commission in April; and

WHEREAS, The Police Department must have Council approval to submit a 
VOCA grant application.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, to approve the Police Department 21-
month Victims Of Crime Act (VOCA) grant application to the U.S. Department of Justice to 
fund the Victim/Witness Unit.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 136 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item G-19

#2017-116 - Approving Change Order No. 3 for Veterans Restroom 
Concession Stand Building

Staff Contact: Todd McCoy

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 137 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 

From: Todd McCoy, Parks and Recreation Director

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Approve Change Order No. 3; to Mid Plains 
Construction Co. of Grand Island, Nebraska for 
Furnishing and Installation of a New 
Restroom/Concession Building at the Veteran’s Athletic 
Soccer Field

Presenter(s): Todd McCoy, Parks and Recreation Director

Background

On December 13, 2016 City Council approved, by Resolution 2016-306, the bid award to 
Mid Plains Construction Co. to build a new restroom/concession building at the Veterans 
Athletic soccer field in the amount of $239,750.00. 

On December 27, 2016 City Council approved Change Order No. 1 increasing the 
amount of the contract amount to $244,113.

On March 14, 2017 City Council approved Change Order No. 2 increasing the amount of 
the contract amount to $253,628.00.

Discussion

During construction it was found that the existing sewer line was 300’ further away from 
the new building than site plans showed. The cost to extend a new sewer line 300’ was 
not called out in the bid. A deduction was found by replacing the original specified grease 
interceptor (trap) with a unit more suitable for the expected operations. The contract 
schedule was adjusted as a result of delays.   

 Deduct JR Smith Grease Interceptor 8025GTX-Ario            ($2,698.00)
 Add JR Smith Grease Interceptor 8025-Ario $1,497.00
 Add 300 feet of sanitary sewer $11,217.00
 Revised contract date is June 15, 2017

The total additional cost of Change Order No. 3 is $10,016.00.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 138 / 201



Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Move to approve
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the City Council approve Veterans 
Restroom/Concession Construction Change Order No. 3 in the amount of $10,016.00. 
Doing so will increase the total amount of the contract with Mid Plains Construction to 
$263,644.00.

Sample Motion

Move to approve Change Order No. 3 to Mid Plains Construction of Grand Island, 
Nebraska for the construction of a new restroom/concession building.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 139 / 201



City Hall • 100 East First Street • Box 1968 • Grand Island, Nebraska 68802-1968
(308) 385-5444 ext. 290 • Fax: 385-5488

Parks & Recreation Department
        

Working Together for a
                    Better Tomorrow, Today.

CHANGE ORDER #3

TO: Mid Plains Construction Co.                  
1319 W North Front St
Grand Island, NE 68801

PROJECT: Furnishing and Installation of New Restroom/Concession Building for the Veteran’s 
Athletic Soccer Field

You are hereby directed to make the following change in your contract.

1. Deduct JR Smith Grease Interceptor 8025GTX-Ario. decrease    $ -2,698.00
2. Add JR Smith Grease Interceptor 8025-Ario.               increase  $  1,497.00
3. Add additional 300 feet of sanitary sewer. increase    $11,217.00
4. Revised contact date is June 15, 2017

__________________________________________________________

The original Contract Sum $ 239,750.00

       Previous Change Order Amounts $   13,878.00

The Contract Sum is increased by this Change Order   $    10,016.00

The total modified Contract Sum to date            $ 263,644.00

The Contract Time is revised.  
___________________________________________________________

Approval and acceptance of this Change Order acknowledges understanding and agreement that the cost and time 
adjustments included represent the complete values arising out of and/or incidental to the work described herein.  
Additional claims will not be considered.

APPROVED: CITY OF GRAND ISLAND

By ________________________________________ Date _______________ 
Mayor

Attest _____________________________________                      
___________________________________

Approved as to Form, City Attorney
ACCEPTED: Mid Plains Construction Co.

By ________________________________________ Date _______________

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 140 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-116

WHEREAS, on December 13, 2016 by Resolution 2016-306, December 27, 2016 
by Resolution 2016-315 and on March 14, 2017, the City Council of the City of Grand Island 
awarded Mid Plains Construction Co. of Grand Island, Nebraska, the bid in the amount of 
$239,750.00, Change Order #1 in the amount of $4,363.00 and Change Order #2 in the amount 
of $9,515.00, for the Furnishing and Installation of a New Restroom/Concession Building at the 
Veteran’s Athletic Soccer Field; and

WHEREAS, during construction it was found that the existing sewer line was 
300’ further away from the new building than site plans showed and cost to extend a new sewer 
line 300’ was not called out in the bid.   A deduction was found by replacing the original 
specified grease interceptor (trap) with a unit more suitable for the expected operations and the 
contract schedule was adjusted as a result of delays; and

WHEREAS, such modifications have been incorporated into Change Order No. 3; 
and

WHEREAS, the result of such modifications will increase the contract amount by 
$10,016.00 for a revised contract price of $263,644.00.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Mayor be, and hereby is, 
authorized and directed to execute Change Order No. 3 between the City of Grand Island and 
Mid Plains Construction Co. from Grand Island, Nebraska to provide the modifications set out as 
follows:

1. Deduct JR Smith Grease Interceptor 8025GTX-Ario. decrease    $ -2,698.00
2. Add JR Smith Grease Interceptor 8025-Ario. increase $  1,497.00
3. Add additional 300 feet of sanitary sewer. increase    $11,217.00
4. Revised contact date is June 15, 2017

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 141 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item H-1

Consideration of Forwarding Blighted and Substandard Area #23 
(Tim Plate) to the Hall County Regional Planning Commission

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 142 / 201



Council Agenda Memo 

From: Chad Nabity, AICP

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Proposed Blighted and Substandard Area #23 

Presenter(s): Chad Nabity, Director Grand Island CRA

Background 

Enclosed you will find a copy of a Substandard and Blight Study as prepared for Tim 
Plate by Marvin Planning Consultants. This study is for approximately 1.28 acres of 
property in central Grand Island located south of Memorial Drive and east of Vine Street. 
The study as prepared and submitted indicates that this property could be considered 
blighted and substandard. The full study is attached for your review and consideration.

Mr. Plate has submitted this study for the review and consideration of the Grand Island 
City Council as permitted by Nebraska law. Mr. Plate has owned this property since 
2007.  In 2008 he subdivided the property to create a third lot with the property toward 
the back of this area.  This lot is buildable, but the cost to extend sewer and water to serve 
the property has prevented development. If the blight and substandard designation is 
approved, a TIF application will be submitted for residential development on the back lot 
with the TIF proceeds paying for the costs associated with the extension of sewer and 
water. The decision on whether to declare an area blighted and substandard is entirely 
within the jurisdiction of the City Council with a recommendation from the Planning 
Commission.

The question before Council will be whether to send the study to the Planning 
Commission for its review and feedback.  If the item is not sent to the Planning 
Commission, the Council cannot declare the area blighted and substandard. Planning 
Commission will meet May 3, and would have a recommendation ready following that 
meeting.

Once an area has been declared blighted and substandard, the CRA can accept 
redevelopment proposals for the area that might, or might not, include an application for 
Tax Increment Financing. Should this be approved, you can anticipate that Mr. Plate will 
submit an application for TIF to assist with the costs associated with fully developing this 
property.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 143 / 201



Discussion

The action item tonight relates to the study for proposed CRA Area No. 23 in south 
central Grand Island as shown below. The study was prepared for 1.28 acres, all of which 
are in the Grand Island City Limits.

Grand Island City Attorney Jerry Janulewicz has reviewed the Nebraska Statutes and case 
law pertaining to the declaration of property as blighted and substandard. His comments 
on this application are as follows:

The statutes which provide for the creation of a redevelopment area or redevelopment 
project within a redevelopment area require the following procedure:

 A request is made to the city council to declare an area to be substandard and blighted 
and in need of development for purposes of enabling the creation of a redevelopment area 
or a redevelopment project within a redevelopment area.

 The city council submits the question of whether an area is substandard and blighted to 
the planning commission for its review and recommendation prior to making its 
declaration that an area is substandard and blighted.

 The planning commission must submit its written recommendations within 30 days after 
receipt of the request. 

 Upon receipt of the recommendations from the planning commission, or after 30 days if 
no recommendation is received, the city council may make its findings and declaration 
with respect to the property within an area. 

 Unless the city council of the city in which such area is located has, by resolution adopted 
after a public hearing with notice, declared such area to be a substandard and blighted 
area in need of redevelopment, the Community Redevelopment Agency cannot prepare a 
redevelopment plan for a redevelopment project area.

 Following a declaration that an area is substandard and blighted, the Community 
Redevelopment Agency is authorized to prepare or cause to be prepared and recommend 
redevelopment plans to the governing body of the city and to undertake and carry out 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 144 / 201



redevelopment projects within its area of operation and may enter into contracts with 
redevelopers of property containing covenants, restrictions, and conditions regarding the 
use of such property for residential, commercial, industrial, or recreational purposes or 
for public purposes in accordance with the redevelopment plan and such other covenants, 
restrictions, and conditions as the authority may deem necessary to prevent a recurrence 
of substandard and blighted areas or to effectuate the purposes of the Community 
Development Law, and to provide grants, loans, or other means of financing to public or 
private parties in order to accomplish the rehabilitation or redevelopment in accordance 
with a redevelopment plan.  Within the area of operation of the Community 
Redevelopment Authority, the authority may exercise its statutory powers with respect to 
the redevelopment project.

Neb. Rev. Stat.  §§ 18-2107; 18-2109.

As stated in Fitzke v. City of Hastings, 582 N.W.2d 301 (Neb. 1998):

A CRA is not authorized to prepare a redevelopment plan for a redevelopment 
project area unless the governing body of the city first enacts a resolution 
declaring such area to be “a substandard or blighted area in need of 
redevelopment.” § 18–2109. After such a declaration has been made and a 
redevelopment plan has been prepared and approved, a CRA is authorized to 
enter into contracts with redevelopers of property containing covenants, 
restrictions, and conditions regarding the use of such property for residential, 
commercial, industrial, or recreational purposes or for public purposes in 
accordance with the redevelopment plan and such other covenants, restrictions, 
and conditions as the [CRA] may deem necessary to prevent a recurrence of 
substandard or blighted areas ... and to provide grants, loans, or other means of 
financing to public or private parties in order to accomplish the rehabilitation or 
redevelopment in accordance with a redevelopment plan.§ 18–2107(4). The CRA 
may utilize tax increment financing to pay for redevelopment projects undertaken 
pursuant to the CDL. § 18–2124.  

“Under this statutory scheme, a private development project would be eligible for tax increment 
financing only if it is included within an area which has previously been declared blighted or 
substandard and is in furtherance of an existing redevelopment plan for that area. The declaration 
of property as blighted or substandard is not simply a formality which must be met in order to 
assist a private developer with tax increment financing; it is the recognition of a specific public 
purpose which justifies the expenditure of public funds for redevelopment.”  Fitzke, id, citing 
Monarch Chemical Works, Inc. v. City of Omaha, 203 Neb. 33, 277 N.W.2d 423 (1979).  The 
legislative intent underlying the Community Development Law is the elimination of blighted and 
substandard areas and to prevent the reoccurrence of blight through a cooperative effort of the 
public and private sectors, not to aid private developers.  Fitzke, id.

At this point, Council is only making a decision about whether to forward the study to the 
Planning Commission for its recommendation or not.  According to NRSS §18-2109, it is 
clear that the Planning Commission must have the opportunity to review the Blight Study 
prior to Council declaring the property substandard and blighted.  If Council wishes to 
consider a declaration of substandard and blight, State Statute requires that the question 
of whether an area is substandard and blighted is submitted to the Planning Commission 
for its review and recommendation.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 145 / 201



The Planning Commission recommendation should be done at the first available 
opportunity, as the Planning Commission has 30 days to respond to Council’s request for 
a recommendation.

Blighted Area of the Community

The city of Grand Island, as a City of the First Class, is permitted to designate an area of 
up to 35% of the municipal limits as blighted and substandard. As of April 1, 2017, 
19.98% of the City has been declared blighted and substandard. Area 23 would add 
another 0.01% bringing the total area declared to 19.99%. The CRA commissioned a 
study of the Veteran’s Home property (Proposed Area 16) that covered 530 acres and 
would, if approved, add 2.76% to the total area declared blighted and substandard. If both 
areas were to be approved and there are no changes in the city limits or areas declared 
blighted and substandard, 22.75% of the city would be declared blighted and substandard.

It does not appear that the declaration of Area 23 would significantly impact the City’s 
ability to declare other areas blighted and substandard.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Move to forward the Study to the Planning Commission for its 
recommendation.

2. Move to not forward the Study to the Planning Commission for its 
recommendation.

3. Refer the issue to a committee.
4. Postpone the issue to future date.
5. Take no action on the issue.

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council move to forward the study to the 
Planning Commission if Council wishes to consider the use of Tax Increment Financing 
as a redevelopment tool for this property.

Sample Motion

Move to forward the Study to the Planning Commission for their review and 
recommendation.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 146 / 201



Grand Island, Nebraska  

Blight and Substandard Study - Area 23 
Completed on behalf of: Tim Plate 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 147 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 148 / 201



Blight and Substandard Study 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska • June 2016        Page 1 
 

PURPOSE OF THE BLIGHT AND SUBSTANDARD STUDY 
The purpose of completing this Blight and Substandard study is to examine existing conditions 

within a specific part of Grand Island. This study has been commissioned by the Tim Plate in order 

to analyze the possibility of declaring the area as blighted and substandard.  

 

The City of Grand Island, when considering conditions of Blight and Substandard, will be looking 

at those issues and definitions provided for in the Nebraska Community Redevelopment Law as 

found in Chapter 18, Section 2104 of the Revised Nebraska State Statutes, as follows:  

 

“The governing body of a city, to the greatest extent it deems to be feasible in 

carrying out the provisions of Sections 18-2101 to 18-2144, shall afford maximum 

opportunity, consistent with sound needs of the city as a whole, to the rehabilitation 

or redevelopment of the community redevelopment area by private enterprises. The 

governing body of a  city shall give consideration to this objective in exercising its 

powers under sections 18-2101 to 18-2144, including the formulation of a workable 

program, the approval of community redevelopment plans consistent with the 

general plan for the development of the city, the exercise of its zoning powers, the 

enforcement of other laws, codes, and regulations relating to the use and 

occupancy of buildings and improvements, the disposition of any property acquired, 

and providing of necessary public improvements”.  

 

The Nebraska Revised Statutes §18-2105 continues by granting authority to the governing body 

for formulation of a workable program. The statute reads,  

“The governing body of a city  or an authority at its direction for the purposes of the 

Community Development Law may formulate for the entire municipality a workable 

program for utilizing appropriate private and public resources to eliminate or prevent 

the development or spread of urban blight, to encourage needed urban 

rehabilitation, to provide for the redevelopment of substandard and blighted areas, 

or to undertake such of the aforesaid activities or other feasible municipal activities 

as may be suitably employed to achieve the objectives of such workable program. 

Such workable program may include, without limitation, provision for the prevention 

of the spread of blight into areas of the municipality which are free from blight 

through diligent enforcement of housing, zoning, and occupancy controls and 

standards; the rehabilitation or conservation of substandard and blighted areas or 

portions thereof by replanning, removing congestion, providing parks, playgrounds, 

and other public improvements by encouraging voluntary rehabilitation and by 

compelling the repair and rehabilitation of deteriorated or deteriorating structures; 

and the clearance and redevelopment of substandard and blighted areas or 

portions thereof.” 

 

Blight and Substandard are defined as the following:  

  “Substandard areas means an area in which there is a predominance of buildings or 

improvements, whether nonresidential or residential in character, which, by reason of 

dilapidation, deterioration, age or obsolescence, inadequate provision for 

ventilation, light, air, sanitation, or open spaces, high density of population and 

overcrowding, or the existence of conditions which endanger life or property by fire 

and other causes, or any combination of such factors, is conducive to ill health, 

transmission of disease, infant mortality, juvenile delinquency, and crime, (which 

cannot be remedied through construction of prisons), and is detrimental to the 

public health, safety, morals, or welfare;” 

 

  “Blighted area means an area, which (a) by reason of the presence of a substantial 

number of deteriorated or deteriorating structures, existence of defective or 

inadequate street layout, faulty lot layout in relation to size, adequacy, accessibility, 

or usefulness, insanitary or unsafe conditions, deterioration of site or other 

improvements, diversity of ownership, tax or special assessment delinquency 

exceeding the fair value of the land, defective or unusual conditions of title, 

improper subdivision or obsolete platting, or the existence of conditions which 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 149 / 201



Blight and Substandard Study 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska • June 2016        Page 2 
 

endanger life or property by fire and other causes, or any combination of such 

factors, substantially impairs or arrests the sound growth of the community, retards 

the provision of housing accommodations, or constitutes an economic or social 

liability and is detrimental to the public health, safety, morals, or welfare in its present 

condition and use and (b) in which there is at least one of the following conditions: (i) 

Unemployment in the designated area is at least one hundred twenty percent of the 

state or national average; (ii) the average age of the residential or commercial units 

in the area is at least forty years; (iii) more than half of the plotted and subdivided 

property in an area is unimproved land that has been within the city for forty years 

and has remained unimproved during that time; (iv) the per capita income of the 

area is lower than the average per capita income of the city or  village in which the 

area is designated; or (v) the area has had either stable or decreasing population 

based on the last two decennial censuses. In no event shall a city of the 

metropolitan, primary, or first class designate more than thirty-five percent of the city 

as blighted, a city of the second class shall not designate an area larger than fifty 

percent of the city as blighted, and a shall not designate an area larger than one 

hundred percent of the as blighted;” 

 

This Blight and Substandard Study is being considered a “micro-blight” area under the definition 

established by the City of Grand Island. The Study is intended to give the Grand Island 

Community Redevelopment Authority, Hall County Regional Planning Commission and Grand 

Island City Council the basis for identifying and declaring Blighted and Substandard conditions 

existing within the City’s jurisdiction and as allowed under Chapter 18, Section 2123.01. Through 

this process, the City and property owners will be attempting to address economic and/or social 

liabilities which are harmful to the well-being of the entire community.  

 

The study area can be seen in Figure 1 of this report. A Redevelopment Plan to be submitted in 

the future will contain, in accordance with the law, definite local objectives regarding 

appropriate land uses, improved traffic, public transportation, public utilities and other public 

improvements, and the proposed land uses and building requirements in the redevelopment 

area and shall include: 

• The boundaries defining the blighted and substandard areas in question (including existing 

uses and conditions of the property within the area), and 

• A list of the conditions present which qualify the area as blighted and substandard.  

 

BLIGHT AND SUBSTANDARD ELIGIBILITY STUDY 
This study targets a specific area within an established part of the community for evaluation. The 

area is indicated in Figure 1 of this report. The existing uses in this area includes several industrial 

uses, commercial uses and a limited number of residential uses within the corporate limits of 

Grand Island.  

 

Through the redevelopment process the City of Grand Island can guide future development 

and redevelopment throughout the area. The use of the Community Redevelopment Act by the 

City of Grand Island is intended to redevelop and improve the area. Using the Community 

Redevelopment Act, the City of Grand Island can assist in the elimination of negative conditions 

and implement different programs/projects identified for the City.  

 

The following is the description of the designated area within Grand Island.  

 

Lot 1, 2 and 3 of Memorial Place Subdivision 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 150 / 201



Blight and Substandard Study 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska • June 2016        Page 3 
 

 

Study Area 
Figure 1 
Study Area Map 

  
Source: Marvin Planning Consultants 2016 

 

EEXXIISSTTIINNGG  LLAANNDD  UUSSEESS  
The term “Land Use” refers to the developed uses in place within a building or on a specific 

parcel of land. The number and type of uses are constantly changing within a community, and 

produce a number of impacts either benefitting or detracting from the community. Because of 

this, the short and long-term success and sustainability of the community is directly contingent 

upon available resources utilized in the best manner given the constraints the City faces during 

the course of the planning period. Existing patterns of land use are often fixed in older 

communities and neighborhoods, while development in newer areas is often reflective of 

current development practices.  

 

Existing Land Use Analysis within Study Area 

As part of the planning process, a survey was conducted through both in-field observations, as 

well as data collection online using the Hall County Assessors website. This survey noted the use 

of each parcel of land within the study area. These data from the survey are analyzed in the 

following paragraphs. 

 

TABLE 1: EXISTING LAND USE, GRAND ISLAND - 2016 
Type of Use Acres Percent of 

Developed land 

within the Study 

Area 

Percent of 

Study Area 

Residential 0.74 100.0% 59.2% 

   Single-family 0 0.0% 0.0% 

   Multi-family 0.74 100.0% 59.2% 

   Manufactured Housing 0 0.0% 0.0% 

Commercial 0 0.0% 0.0% 

Industrial 0.00 0.0% 0.0% 

Quasi-Public/Public 0 0.0% 0.0% 

Parks/Recreation 0 0.0% 0.0% 

Transportation 0.00 0.0% 0.0% 

Total Developed Land 0.74 100.0%   

Vacant/Agriculture 0.51   40.8% 

Total Area 1.25   100.0% 

 
Source: Marvin Planning Consultants 2016 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 151 / 201



Blight and Substandard Study 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska • June 2016        Page 4 
 

Table 1 includes the existing land uses for the entire study area. The table contains the total 

acres determined per land use from the survey; next is the percentage of those areas compared 

to the total developed land; and finally, the third set of data compare the all land uses to the 

total area within the Study Area. The Study Area is made up of multi-family (59.2%) and land 

considered vacant accounts for only 40.8% of the total area.  

 
Figure 2 
Existing Land Use Map 

 
Source: Marvin Planning Consultants, 2016 

 

FFIINNDDIINNGGSS  OOFF  BBLLIIGGHHTT  AANNDD  SSUUBBSSTTAANNDDAARRDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  EELLIIGGIIBBIILLIITTYY  SSTTUUDDYY  
This section of the study examines the conditions found in the study area. The Findings Section 

will review the conditions based upon the statutory definitions.  

 

CONTRIBUTING FACTORS 
There were a number of conditions examined and evaluated in the field and online. There are a 

number of conditions that will be reviewed in detail, on the following pages, while some of the 

statutory conditions are not present. 

 

Age of Structure 
Age of structures can be a contributing factor to the blighted and substandard conditions in an 

area. Statutes allow for a predominance of structures 40 years of age or older to be a 

contributing factor regardless of their condition. The following paragraphs document the 

structural age of the structures within the Study Area. Note the age of structure was determined 

from the Appraisal data within the Hall County Assessor’s website data.  

 

Within the study area there is a total of two primary structures. After researching the structural 

age on the Hall County Assessor’s and Treasurer’s websites, the following breakdown was 

determined: 

• 2 (100.0%) units were determined to be 40 years of age or older 

 

The age of the structures would be a direct contributing factor.  

 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 152 / 201



Blight and Substandard Study 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska • June 2016        Page 5 
 

Figure 3  
Unit Age Map 

 
Source: Google Earth and Marvin Planning Consultants, 2016 

 

Structural Conditions 
Structural conditions were evaluated, structures were either rated as: Very Good, Good, Fair, 

Average, or badly worn. The data and rating system comes from the Hall County Assessor’s 

database and is the same database used to value properties in the area.  

 

Based upon the data provided to the planning team, the following is the breakdown for 

structures in the study area: 

•   0 (  0.0%) structures rated as very good 

•   0 (  0.0%) structures rated as good  

•   0 (  0.0%) structure rated as fair  

•   2 (100.0%) structures rated as average 

•   0 (   0.0%) structure rated as badly worn 

 

Figure 4 
Structural Conditions 

 
Source: Google Earth and Marvin Planning Consultants, 2016 

 

 

 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 153 / 201



Blight and Substandard Study 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska • June 2016        Page 6 
 

Based upon these data, an assumption has been made that average condition and less would 

constitute less than desirable conditions due to age and conditions. It is common for older 

structures to get more maintenance and upkeep in order to maintain a good or higher 

condition. Even an average structure will show some signs of deteriorating which in turn can 

become a dilapidated structure in the future if it is not addressed over time. Overall, 100.0% of 

the structures in this study area are average condition or worse. 

  

Due to the stated conditions found in the Hall County Assessor’s data, the condition of the 

structure is a contributing factor.  

 

Deterioration of Site or Other Improvements 

Site Improvements Conditions  

The properties within the study area are accessed via a common driveway through an access 

easement on the site. Currently, a portion of the driveway is in a deteriorating state in certain 

areas. In addition, there has been a great deal of crack sealant used on the driveway accessing 

this study area.  

 

Figure 5 
Deterioration of Site or Other Improvements 

 
Source: Google Earth and Marvin Planning Consultants, 2016 

 

Based upon the field analysis, there are sufficient elements present to meet the definition of 

deterioration of site and other improvements in the Study Area.  

 

Combination of factors which are impairing and/or arresting sound growth 

Within this study area there is critical factor impairing or arresting sound growth. This is the inability 

to extend city services, without substantial cost to Lot 3 of this subdivision.  

 

Based upon the review of the area, there is one sufficient element present to meet the definition 

of combination of factors which are impairing and/or arresting sound growth within the Study 

Area.  

 

 

 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 154 / 201



Blight and Substandard Study 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska • June 2016        Page 7 
 

Stable or decreasing population based on the last two decennial censuses 
Over the past 20 years the population within the study area has been stable or decreasing. The 

population within the Study Area has had limited population for the past two decennial 

censuses. Therefore, it meets the criteria for a stable or decreasing population.  

 

Blighting Summary 
These conditions are contributing to the blighted conditions of the study area. 

 

• Average age of structures is over 40 years of age 

o Within the Study Area 100.0% of the structures meet the criteria of 40 years of age or 

older. 

 

• Substantial number of deteriorating structures 

o Within the study are 100.0% of the structures were deemed to be in average condition.  

 

• Deterioration of site or other improvements 

o Damage to the existing driveway providing access to the study area.  

 

• Combination of factors which are impairing and/or arresting sound growth 

o Extension of existing city services to Lot 3 of the Subdivision cannot be accomplished 

without significant cost.  

 

• Stable or decreasing population based on the last two decennial censuses 

o The population of the Study Area has remained stable over the past two decennial 

censuses. 

 

The other criteria for Blight were not present in the area, these included: 

• Insanitary and Unsafe Conditions 

• Dangerous conditions to life or property due to fire or other causes 

• Faulty Lot Layout 

• Improper Subdivision or Obsolete Platting 

• Defective/Inadequate street layouts 
• Diversity of Ownership 

• Tax or special assessment delinquency exceeding fair value of the land. 

• Defective or unusual condition of title, 

• Unemployment in the designated area is at least 120% of the state or national average. 

• One-half of unimproved property is over 40 years old. 

• The per capita income of the area is lower than the average per capita income of the city 

or village in which the area is designated. 

 

These issues were either not present or were limited enough as to have little impact on the 

overall condition of the study area. 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 155 / 201



Blight and Substandard Study 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska • June 2016        Page 8 
 

Substandard Conditions 
Average age of the residential or commercial units in the area is at least 40 
years  
Age of structures can be a contributing factor to the blighted and substandard conditions in an 

area. Statutes allow for a predominance of units that are 40 years of age or older to be a 

contributing factor regardless of their condition. Note the age of structure was determined from 

the Appraisal data within the Hall County Assessor’s website data.  

 

Within the study area there is a total of two structures. After researching the structural age on the 

Hall County Assessor’s and Treasurer’s websites, the following breakdown was determined: 

• 2 (100.0%) units were determined to be more than 40 years of age  

 

There is a predominance of units 40 years of age or older.  

 

Substandard Summary 
Nebraska State Statute requires that “…an area in which there is a predominance of buildings or 

improvements, whether nonresidential or residential in character, which, by reason of 

dilapidation, deterioration, age or obsolescence, inadequate provision for ventilation, light, air, 

sanitation, or open spaces, high density of population and overcrowding, or the existence of 

conditions which endanger life or property by fire and other causes, or any combination of such 

factors, is conducive to ill health, transmission of disease, infant mortality, juvenile delinquency, 

and crime, (which cannot be remedied through construction of prisons), and is detrimental to 

the public health, safety, morals, or welfare;” 

 

This Study Area in Grand Island meets the defintion of Substandard as defined in the Revised 

Nebraska State Statutes.  

 

FINDINGS FOR GRAND ISLAND BLIGHT STUDY AREA #23 
Blight Study Area #23 has several items contributing to the Blight and Substandard Conditions. 

These conditions include: 

 

Blighted Conditions 
• Average age of structures is over 40 years of age 

• Substantial number of deteriorated or deteriorating structures 

• Deterioration of site or other improvements 

• Combination of factors which are impairing and/or arresting sound growth 

• Stable or decreasing population based on the last two decennial censuses 

• Diversity of Ownership 

 
Substandard Conditions 
• Average age of the structures in the area is at least forty years  

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 156 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item I-1

#2017-117 - Consideration of Approving Contract for Preparation 
of a Redevelopment Plan for Former Central Nebraska Veterans 
Home Land

Staff Contact: Jerry Janulewicz

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 157 / 201



Council Agenda Memo

From: Jerom E. Janulewicz, City Attorney

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Agreement with Olsson Associates, Inc. for Development 
of a Reuse Plan for a part of the former Central Nebraska 
Veterans Home in Grand Island

Presenter(s): Marlan Ferguson, City Administrator

Background

In 2016, the State of Nebraska conveyed to the City of Grand Island various tracts of real 
estate that were a part of the Central Nebraska Veterans Home. The property conveyed 
includes tracts north of Nebraska Highway 2 between Broadwell Avenue and Webb Road 
and South of Highway 281 as well as the agricultural lands south of Highway 2 and north 
of Capital Avenue. The City issued an RFP seeking proposals from a qualified consulting 
firm to assist in the development of a reuse plan for these lands.

Discussion

Olsson Associates, Inc. was selected as the preferred consultant for providing the services 
requested. Copies of the proposed Scope of Services, Letter of Agreement, and general 
provisions are included.

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Adopt the Resolution authorizing the agreement with Olsson Associates, Inc.
2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 158 / 201



Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council adopt the Resolution.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the resolution authorizing the Agreement with Olsson Associates, Inc. 
for Development of a Reuse Plan for a part of the former Central Nebraska Veterans 
Home in Grand Island.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 159 / 201



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

  
Stacy Nonhof, Purchasing Agent

Working Together for a
                    Better Tomorrow, Today

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
FOR 

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR FORMER CENTRAL NEBRASKA
VETERANS HOME LAND

RFP DUE DATE: February 8, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.

DEPARTMENT: Legal

PUBLICATION DATE: N/A

NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 9

SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS RECEIVED

Olsson Associates Confluence
Grand Island, NE Des Moines, IA

HDR
Omaha, NE

cc: Jerry Janulewicz, City Attorney Stacy Nonhof, Assistant City Attorney
Marlan Ferguson, City Administrator Renae Griffiths, Finance Director

P1936

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 160 / 201



Page 1 of 3 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 

This exhibit is hereby attached to and made a part of the Letter Agreement for Professional 
Services dated April 6, 2017 between City of Grand Island (“Client”) and Olsson Associates 
(“Olsson”) providing for professional services.  Olsson’s Scope of Services for the Agreement is 
indicated below. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION 
 
Project will be located at:  Former Veterans Home Land, Grand Island, NE 
 
Project Description:  Redevelopment Plan for former Veterans Home Land which 

comprises approximately 640 acres bounded by Capital Avenue, 
Hwy 281, Broadwell Avenue, and Webb Road. 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Olsson shall provide the following services (Scope of Services) to Client for the Project: 
 

PLANNING SERVICES 
 
Phase 100 -  Land Use Master Plan 

 
Task 101 -  Discover 
Initial project meeting (conference call) to discuss overall outcomes, desired 
program, background information, timelines, and stakeholders. 
 
Olsson will compile and analyze existing conditions in the study area.  Gather 
data from available sources, maps, and analyze the existing infrastructure, 
resources, and conditions of the study area.  
 
It is assumed this data is available from existing sources, and that Olsson will 
have access to the data for no fee.  Should a fee be required for data access, 
that fee shall be considered additional services and will be billed accordingly.  
 
Olsson will evaluate the current and future economic market factors that 
influence existing and future business and development opportunities, as well as 
providing demand potential for commercial, housing, office, and industrial uses.  
This will be used to prepare an economic analysis report to provide solid 
information to help formulate a “market positioning strategy” for the project area. 
 
Task 102 -  Engage 
Engagement phase occurs throughout the entire planning process, but primarily 
during the envision and narrow phases.  Olsson will utilize individual meetings 
and dialog, public forums, a charrette, and an open house to assist in developing 
a plan.  
 
During the 3 day charrette process, Olsson will set up a goal setting kick off 
(visioning) meeting with the appointed stakeholder group (steering committee) 
and city staff to clearly define the goals and objectives for the project and 
community.  There will also be public meetings scheduled along with small group 
meetings and interviews with key stakeholders. 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 161 / 201



Page 2 of 3 

 
 
 
Task 103 -  Envision 
Olsson will develop multiple concepts for enhancement, development, 
redevelopment, and infill based upon a community goal setting session; existing 
conditions; economic factors; information gathered in individual stakeholder 
meetings; and the three-day charrette. 
 
Olsson will prepare sketches, visualizations, and renderings that are easily 
understood and very graphic in nature for the community and stakeholders to 
review and give input on.   

 
Task 104 -  Narrow 
Olsson will narrow the concepts and options into a defined direction based on 
consensus building and community/stakeholder involvement.   It will incorporate 
existing studies and new initiatives discovered in the plan process and develop 
them into potential solutions, incorporate the market opportunities identified, and 
define a clear direction for the future of the project area.  This refined 
development plan will be shared with the stakeholder group on the last day of the 
charrette. 
 
Task 105 -  Plan 
Olsson will further refine the plan and distribute to client for review and comment.  
Olsson will address the comments and prepare the plan document which will be 
presented to the client at an in person meeting.   
 
The Master Plan will contain the following: 

• Recommendations for economic and development improvements 

• Address potential opportunities for implementing the community 
objectives 

• Propose and design strategies for: 
o Land use 
o Economic development 
o Transportation 
o Infrastructure 
o Design and layout 
o Amenity and character 
o Improvement in quality of life 

• Objectives to: 
o Manage change 
o Identify and prioritize objectives for investment 
o Identify potential funding sources 
o Recommend implementation framework 

 
Task 106 -  Implement 
As part of the Master Plan, Olsson will prepare an implementation framework that 
will provide the critical first steps in the Redevelopment Plan and its 
recommendations.  It will focus on near, mid- and long-range goals, as well as 
opinions of costs for recommendations.  The implementation framework will be 
shared with the client digitally and discussed via conference call for review and 
comment.  Comments will be incorporated into final plan and final plan will be 
presented in person to the City Council. 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 162 / 201



Page 3 of 3 

 
 

 
Should Client request work in addition to the Scope of Services, Olsson shall invoice Client for 
such additional services (Optional Additional Services) at the standard hourly billing labor rate 
charged for those employees actually performing the work, plus reimbursable expenses if any.  
Olsson shall not commence work on Optional Additional Services without Client’s prior written 
approval. 
 
Olsson agrees to provide all of its services in a timely, competent and professional manner, in 
accordance with applicable standards of care, for projects of similar geographic location, quality 
and scope. 
 
 
OLSSON ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
 
 
By _____________________________ ____________________________ 
 Jeff R. Palik Ken Boone 
 
 
If you accept this Scope of Services, please sign: 
 
CITY OF GRAND ISLAND 
 
 
 
By _____________________________ 
                      Signature 
 
Print Name ______________________ 
 
 
Title ____________________________ Dated: _________________________ 
 
 
 

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 163 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-117

WHEREAS, In 2016, the State of Nebraska conveyed to the City of Grand Island 
various tracts of real estate that were a part of the Central Nebraska Veterans Home; and

WHEREAS, The property conveyed includes tracts north of Nebraska Highway 2 
between Broadwell Avenue and Webb Road and South of Highway 281 as well as the 
agricultural lands south of Highway 2 and north of Capital Avenue; and

WHEREAS, The City issued an RFP seeking proposals from a qualified 
consulting firm to assist in the development of a reuse plan for these lands; and

WHEREAS, Olsson Associates, Inc. was selected as the preferred consultant for 
providing the services requested.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the agreement between the City of 
Grand Island and Olsson Associates, Inc. to prepare a Redevelopment Plan for the former 
Central Nebraska Veterans Home lands as described herein, should be and the same hereby is 
approved.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 164 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item I-2

#2017-118 - Consideration of Approving Bid Award for Sports 
Facility Expansion Design Services at Veteran’s Athletic Field 
Complex

Staff Contact: Todd McCoy

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 165 / 201



Council Agenda Memo

From: Todd McCoy, Parks and Recreation Director

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Approve RFQ for Design Services for the Expansion of 
Veterans Athletic Field Complex

Presenter(s): Todd McCoy, Parks and Recreation Director

Background

In May of 2016 Grand Island voters approved the extension of the Food and Beverage 
Occupation Tax.

The City Finance Department has estimated that the tax will generate $2.0 million per 
year. City Administration has recommended utilizing F & B revenue for Nebraska State 
Fair Support, Grow Grand Island, and City of Grand Island quality of life projects.

One of the major projects discussed regarding the Food and Beverage funds is the 
expansion of the Veterans Athletic Field Complex. The Veterans Athletic Field Complex 
was built as a result of the Nebraska State Fair relocation at Fonner Park. Currently, the 
Veterans Complex consists of twelve acres of soccer and four large softball/baseball 
fields. The fields are used mainly by adult leagues during the summer and fall months.  
Area youth baseball and softball organizations rent the fields for tournaments and games 
on weekends and week nights as available. The soccer fields are utilized by the Heartland 
Soccer Club and local Grand Island high school programs.
     
Expanding the Veterans Athletic Field Complex will alleviate scheduling conflicts with 
local leagues and provide facilities to keep pace with the growing demand of area 
competitive sports teams. With the improvements, the complex will be a desirable 
location for state and regional tournaments. It is estimated that the annual expense to 
operate the additional fields is approximately $150,000 for staffing, fuel, fertilizer, 
electricity, weed control, equipment, etc.

Since the Food and Beverage Tax was passed, City staff has closely reviewed needs, 
gathered feedback from the newly formed sports commission, and completed master 
planning for the site. City Administration recommends building six youth multipurpose 
baseball/softball fields, concessions, restrooms, additional parking, connecting Eagle 
Scout Park from the north, and adding a splash pad. The total estimated cost for the 
project including design, contingency, and construction is $6,490,682.00.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 166 / 201



Discussion

Four RFQ’s were received to design the expansion project.

Olsson Associates, Grand Island, NE
DLR Group, Omaha, NE
Confluence, Des Moines, IA
Big Muddy Workshop, Omaha, NE

Staff recommends contracting Olsson and Associates to provide design services, prepare 
construction documents, and oversee expansion for the project. Olsson was selected 
based on the criteria of approach, experience, resume of staff, schedule, and price. The 
contact amount is $375,000. This project will be paid with Food and Beverage funds. 

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Move to approve

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 167 / 201



2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the City Council accept the proposal from Olsson 
Associates of Grand Island, Nebraska for Design Services to expand Veterans Athletic 
Field Complex.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the proposal from Olsson Associates for Design Services to expand 
Veterans Athletic Field Complex in the amount of $375,000.00.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 168 / 201



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

  
Stacy Nonhof, Purchasing Agent

Working Together for a
                    Better Tomorrow, Today

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS
FOR

SPORTS FACILITY EXPANSION DESIGN SERVICES
VETERAN’S ATHLETIC FIELD COMPLEX

RFP DUE DATE: November 29, 2016 at 4:00 p.m.

DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation

PUBLICATION DATE: November 6, 2016

NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 3

SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS RECEIVED

Olsson Associates DLR Group
Grand Island, NE Omaha, NE

Confluence Big Muddy Workshop, Inc.
Kansas City, MO Omaha, NE

cc: Todd McCoy, Parks & Recreation Director Patti Buettner, Parks Admin. Assist.
Marlan Ferguson, City Administrator Renae Griffiths, Finance Director
Stacy Nonhof, Purchasing Agent

P1919

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 169 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 170 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 171 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 172 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 173 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 174 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 175 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 176 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 177 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 178 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 179 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 180 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 181 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 182 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 183 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 184 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 185 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 186 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 187 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 188 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 189 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 190 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-118

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island is in the process of expanding the Veterans 
Athletic Field Complex; and

WHEREAS, such project will require a consultant to provide design services, 
prepare construction documents and oversee expansion of the Veterans Athletic Field Complex 
that will include adding four (4) new baseball/softball fields, restroom/concession stand building 
and parking; and

WHEREAS, such project will be funded through the Food and Beverage Tax; and

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 
for Sports Facility Expansion Design Services for such project; and

WHEREAS, four (4) request for qualifications were received and the proposal 
from Olsson Associates ranked the highest; and

WHEREAS, Olsson Associates from Grand Island, Nebraska, submitted a 
proposal for such project in accordance with the Request for Qualifications; and

WHEREAS, a contract amount of $375,000.00 has been negotiated; and

WHEREAS, a Letter of Agreement for Professional Services with Olsson 
Associates to provide design services, prepare construction documents and oversee expansion for 
such project has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Letter of Agreement for 
Professional Services with Olsson Associates from Grand Island, Nebraska to provide design 
services, prepare construction documents and oversee expansion of the Veterans Athletic Field 
Complex is hereby approved at a cost of $375,000.00.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed 
to execute such agreement on behalf of the City of Grand Island

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 191 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item I-3

#2017-119 – Consideration of Approving Resolution Authorizing 
Amendment of the Conservation Easement with Respect of Tract 
#32, South Locust Street/I-80 Interchange Project

Staff Contact: Jerry Janulewicz

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 192 / 201



Council Agenda Memo

From: Jerom E. Janulewicz, City Attorney

Meeting: April 11, 2017

Subject: Amendment of Perpetual Conservation Easement, Tract 
#32, South Locust Street/I-80 Interchange Project.

Presenter(s): Jerom E. Janulewicz, City Attorney

Background

In the late 1990’s the City of Grand Island, Hall County, and the Nebraska Department of 
Roads entered into an interlocal agreement and amendments thereto relative to the 
construction of an interchange at the location of South Locust Street and Interstate 80 and 
the construction of a new four lane South Locust Street between the city and Interstate 
80.  The agreement provided, in part, that Hall County would acquire the necessary right-
of-way for the project.  In order to address environmental concerns of the Nebraska 
Game and Parks Commission and Federal Fish and Wildlife Service, Hall County agreed 
to acquire conservation easements upon properties surrounding the interchange area and 
the City agreed to be the grantee of the easements, with the duty to monitor and enforce 
compliance with the terms of the easements.  Pursuant to agreements between the various 
governmental entities and agencies, the terms of a conservation easement cannot be 
amended or changed by the City and a landowner unless such amendment or change is 
approved by the County of Hall, the Nebraska Department of Roads, and the Nebraska 
Game and Parks Commission. 

The owner of Tract #32 entered into a real estate purchase agreement with a buyer.  The 
owner and buyer are requesting the conservation easement be amended, as the easement 
does not specifically provide authorization to use this 13 acre tract for a single-family 
residence even though a residence existed on the property when the easement was 
acquired. The buyer has plans to remove the existing residence and construct a new 
residence on the property. 

The current conservation easement grants the continuing right to use the land for “[t]he 
construction of single family dwellings, restricted to one dwelling per 20-acre area or 
greater.”  The buyer and seller are requesting that the language in the previous quotations 
be deleted and replaced with the following: “The construction and occupancy of a single 
family dwelling, restricted to one single family dwelling upon the Property.”  All other 
provision of the conservation easement would remain unchanged and in full force and 
effect.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 193 / 201



Discussion

The City’s legal department provided background information to and participated in 
telephone conferences with representatives of the Nebraska Department of Road, 
Nebraska Game and Parks Commission, Federal Highway Administration, Federal Fish 
and Wildlife Service, and Federal Highway Administration.  On April 5, 2017, 
representatives of those agencies indicated they would recommend to their respective 
agencies approval of the following amendment to the Conservation Easement if such 
amendment were approved by the City and Hall County:

Delete “The construction of single family dwellings, restricted to one 
dwelling per 20 acre area or greater” and substitute in its place “The 
construction and occupancy of a single family dwelling, restricted to one 
single family dwelling upon the Property.”

Alternatives

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may:

1. Adopt the Resolution authorizing the amendment of the Conservation 
Easement, subject to concurrence of Hall County, Nebraska Game and Parks 
Commission and Nebraska Department of Roads.

2. Refer the issue to a Committee
3. Postpone the issue to future date
4. Take no action on the issue

Recommendation

City Administration recommends that the Council adopt the Resolution.

Sample Motion

Move to approve the resolution authorizing amendment of the Conservation Easement 
with respect to Tract #32, South Locust Street/I-80 Interchange Project.

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 194 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 195 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 196 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 197 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 198 / 201



Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 199 / 201



Approved as to Form ¤ ___________
April 7, 2017 ¤  City Attorney

R E S O L U T I O N    2017-119

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island is the grantee of a conservation easement 
upon the following described lands, to wit:

The South Four Hundred Forty Two (442.0) Feet of the East Half of the 
Southwest Quarter (E1/2SW1/4) of Section Twenty Two (22), Township Ten (10) 
North, Range Nine (9) West of the 6th P.M., Hall County, Nebraska; and

WHEREAS, the above-described property is approximately 13 acres in area; and

WHEREAS, Karlene Larson, owner of the property, requested that the 
conservation easement be amended by deleting the provisions of Article III, Section C and 
inserting in its place the following: “The construction and occupancy of a single family dwelling, 
restricted to one single family dwelling upon the Property”; and

WHEREAS, an effective amendment of the conservation easement requires 
concurrence of the County of Hall, the Nebraska Department of Roads, and the Nebraska Game 
and Parks Commission.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that proposed Amendment to the Grant of 
Perpetual Conservation Easement upon the above-described real estate is approved, subject to 
concurrence of the County of Hall, the Nebraska Department of Roads, and the Nebraska Game 
and Parks Commission. The mayor of the City of Grand Island should be and is hereby 
authorized to execute the amendment on behalf of the City.

- - -

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, April 11, 2017.

_______________________________________
Jeremy L. Jensen, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________________
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 200 / 201



City of Grand Island
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Council Session

Item J-1

Approving Payment of Claims for the Period of March 29, 2017 
through April 11, 2017
The Claims for the period of March 29, 2017 through April 11, 2017 for a total amount of 
$3,819,935.24.  A MOTION is in order. 

Staff Contact: Renae Griffiths

Grand Island Council Session - 4/11/2017 Page 201 / 201


